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New base under construction

China Liansu is a leading manufacturer of plastic pipes and pipe fittings
in the PRC, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock name: China Liansu, stock code: 2128). The Group has 14 major
production bases located variously in Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan,
Hubei, Jiangsu, Henan, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Shaanxi and Xinjiang
and a sales network covering the whole country. These production
bases and sales network are strategically distributed all over China such
that the Group can provide quality products and meticulous services to
customers in a timely manner.

China Liansu is able to provide the most comprehensive range of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings to the market. These products are
widely used in areas such as water supply, drainage, power supply
and telecommunications, gas supply, floor heating, fire prevention
and agriculture. The Group has expanded to home building material
products such as sanitary products, holistic kitchen, and plastic-steel
doors and windows.

China Liansu is a one-stop solution provider that offers consultation,
design, implementation and after-sales services to customers. By
getting involved in projects at their initial stage, the Group helps
customers to formulate comprehensive, total solutions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

0125 WNE I ORD)
2012 2011 Increase/
(decrease)
(%)
BZ12A31ALEE For the year ended 31 December
(AR¥EER) (RMB million)
WA Revenue 10,891 10,143 74
EH Gross profit 2,649 2,452 8.0
BRI AR Finance costs 146 m 315
SERTERIFE EBITDA 1,881 1841 22
B A R A Profit before tax 1,482 1,557 (4.8)
FRmF Profit for the year 1,231 1,261 (2.4)
KRR AEERT Profit attributable to owners of the Company 1,238 1,261 (1.8)
M2A3MB(AREEET) At 31 December (RMB million)
BERE Total assets 9,783 7,792 256
He RIRITEN Cash and bank deposits 1922 2,117 (9.2)
B L Total debts'" 2,225 1,745 215
SRER(FHE )R Net debt/(net cash)? 302 (372) (181.2)
T R Total equity 6,028 4,987 209
RHER Share information
FREXBHO(ARE) Basic earnings per share® (RMB) 0.41 0.42 (2.4)
ShESRFMI(ARE) Diluted earnings per share® (RMB) 0.40 041 (24)
BUR AR BRI S (BAL) Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) 12 12 -
BRARRER ARLER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 199 1.66 199
(AREE) per share (RMB)
Bt Financial ratios
BEISEEEHEARGE®N(%)  Total debts to total capital® (%) 21 2
SFETSERERLLER(%) Net debt to equity® (%) 5 %34 Netcash
TS EF| L Re(£F) Interest cover® (times) 12.88 16.59
Kiat - Notes:
1. ERITER R EAEFAREE o 1. Represented total bank loans and other borrowings.
2. EESEERIES RIBTTER 2. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits.
3. RRBBREABTEGREERF 2 HF MR 3 Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the
TR MIFET © Company are set out in note 11 to financial statements.
4. BT AEFERR ABE TS AR N s AR RE RO BN o 4. Represented total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity.
5. R FES R A AB5E - 5. Represented net debt divided by total equity.
6. Te SR E AT AR AR E PR AN o 6. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs.

02 BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BENANELEE
For the year ended 31 December
201245 20114 20104F 20094F 20084
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
S RESULTS RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
'ON REVENUE 10,891,363 10,143,296 7,711,532 5,322,244 3,618,526
BRE AR T PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,482,279 1,556,933 1,373,516 799,414 170,741%
T8 Income tax expense (251,008) (296,237) (241,333) (155,443) (34,827)*
FERER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,231,211 1,260,696 1,132,183 643,971 135,914
DA FE(REF - Profit attributable to:
KARER A Owners of the Company 1,238,322 1,260,758 1,132,183 643,971 135,481
SRS R Non-controlling interests (7,051) (62) - . 433
1,231,271 1,260,696 1,132,183 643,971 135,914
MM2A318
At 31 December
201245 20114F 20104F 20094F 20084
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
B EEAR ST FINANCIAL POSITION RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
IERBEE Non-current assets 4,669,883 3,284,886 2,014,162 1,542,951 948,422
MEEAE Current assets 5,112,903 4,506,649 3,614,638 1,955,800 1,180,933
BERE Total assets 9,782,786 7,791,535 5,628,800 3,498,751 2,129,355
aE LIABILITIES
FERBBE Non-current liabilities 1,715,992 1,770,979 216,605 941,726 63,393
mEAE Current liabilities 2,038,876 1,033,191 1,407,744 1,515,037 1,641,848
B 5% Total liabilities 3,754,868 2,804,170 1,624,349 2,456,763 1,705,241
WE)EE,(BfE)  NETCURRENT ASSETS/
et (LIABILITIES) 3,074,027 3,473,458 2,206,894 440,763 (460,915)
R EQUITY
ViN/NEIE SN Equity attributable to owners
FE(EHEE of the Company 6,010,033 4,986,975 4,004,451 1,041,988 424114
FEIE SIS Non-controlling interests 17,885 390 - - -
T AARE Total equity 6,027,918 4,987,365 4,004,451 1,041,988 424,114
Hiat - Note:

NEEH Z 20084 £2009F 12 A31 A L FERBEMBE

B e mERER -

* BRIEEBNZE

BEEEEN °

The Group's historical financial information for the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2009 was extracted from the Prospectus.

* The effect of discontinued operations was considered.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

hEIRE 201 2 F BB IR AERUE O B
B ERERNESTET  BRAESFREN
B - AMAREEBR D BIEAHEMER - #
Em SR - AMEREE BIEMIS L amE
ENENEE  AREEALRETSEE - BR
EBMRRIEE BERRRAIEER -

HE2012F12A31BEFE - AREHEARK
108.91BITTUA » B2011FEHAREE101.43(8
TCIEINT 4% ° N FI20125 M A IS SR A
AR#1238187T B0 FEMARE12.611E
TTEA1.8% c EEEREFEIRNEE2012F12 A
31 B IEFERARBAREER1 2B -

EIEE20124F - MEKEET E2 OB ER -
FEBRFITELZEENTFBERLSERZ It
TERABREEK  YEETEERE  BBRE
EEEBERERES - R BEBF TR ER
HEZBEEERGHESERES  2EREEE
B WIEERRNE  TENERRKFIRE - 4
AEBNEGREBTNERTK -

EH2012F it BB IE KL IRE - A& E
FOFBITEERES R RBEERE T
— AR EVS IR AER - Efe A EIMERIE
o FEREEESEIERHE  BRERERTT
TIBE R ERR -

AEENHHHRRERENSES  REEFAE
NERZEMAERS  KEEHL  BREFFS—
RINREEMER - BARAMNKEEMEBM
AEBEEBRB NS - REBERF 72013
FRIERBNEE  MPRENEIEmEBERE
R %E 9% KRR TEEEED
BEmEMSCER  KAESARERENE
BHHz—-

In 2012, against the backdrop of the Eurozone debt crisis and the
Chinese government's credit tightening policies, China Liansu faced
a challenging operating environment in terms of market demand.
Nevertheless, the Group managed to respond effectively to changing
market trends by fully capitalising on its sales network, its research and
development capabilities with new products and new technologies,
as well as its focused strategy of target marketing and careful brand
management. As a result, China Liansu today enjoys steady growth
and continues to create value for the Shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded revenue
of RMB10,891 million, an increase of 7.4% from RMB10,143 million
in 2011. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB1,238
million in 2012, a decrease of 1.8% from RMB1,261 million in 2011.
The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK12
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Looking back at 2012, the Eurozone debt crisis continued to be a
drag on the global economic recovery, while the Chinese government
set a cautious target for steady economic growth. Credit tightening
policies were also implemented, which affected the investments in
fixed assets, putting pressure on the plastic pipe industry. However,
the Chinese government has carried out various supportive measures
during the year, to actively promote the construction of infrastructure,
including housing units for social security recipients, infrastructure in
cities and towns, as well as the development of new villages and water
infrastructure. All these will generate steady demand for the Group’s
products.

In light of 2012's challenging business environment, the Group, as
an industry leader, has remained dedicated to strengthen its existing
sales network, and has further solidified its foothold in third and fourth
tier cities. The Group has also continued to enhance its production
capacity. All of these initiatives have helped to build a solid foundation
for long-term development and success.

Given today’s growing popularity with fitted-out properties, the Group
placed great efforts in developing a range of home building material
products like plastic-steel doors and windows as well as sanitary
products and holistic kitchen during the year under review. In order
for the Group’s new business of home building materials and the
internationalisation of its businesses, the Group plans to enhance the
brand trademark with essential messages of “Link, Ease, Safe, Share
and Open” in 2013. The Group is now gradually launching products that
incorporate those brand essences, and these are expected to become
its primary revenue drivers.

04 BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

RERR - BREETSORIERE - 2EIHE
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Looking forward, the Group aims to leverage strategic planning in its
market coverage, expand its sales network nationwide, continue the
internationalisation of its businesses, initiate the orderly expansion
and optimisation of capacity, develop new products and move toward
more focused branding. Using these tools, the Group will continue
to effectively respond to market demand, enhance brand awareness,
fortify its market-leading position and strengthen its international
expansion in order to generate better return for the Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude
to all employees for their long-term contributions. Their teamwork
and hard work have served as a major impetus for the Group’s
development. This is true especially in today’s challenging business
environment. Last but not least, | wish to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all customers, business partners, the Shareholders, and
friends from various communities for their valuable support of the
Group.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman

Shunde, the PRC, 18 March 2013

¥ Annual Report 2012 0b
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HITES

EHAE L  B0pk 0 AAKEEEIPEATARAR
T/ 200911 ABEEZ T ARNATRITE
F o BNMRAAEENZEXNE QARIETESH
HoREEAEAKENEEEBRRINELE
B BAERBHEBECEREEFERELN16
FEE o [HA19964F 12 A 2199944 B 1E(T B
BB EEMETE - WR2003FEMRILTIEERE
ARBEFAINEZEFRECER] - BLLEH
2003 FFHREARBIA A SR EILTIEEREE
BEEE - WH2006F B ILTIEEEE LA
HERER - AL NEELTHERE -

Mk E 405k - BAKBEITIRER - TR
20102 A27 A EZE AR RRMITES © HIF
MALEANZHKERARETES MBEIE 8
ERG - BEIEAFASEATEBRCEERE -
TEAEREREBITERBANISFRER - Lk
MR1999F 12 ANMBAREE - BUHRKCEEETE
BIEETRBA - L ETRZESRE - BER
2009F EFRBRBHINT TEHES T A REBE
TERETIEE] EREDNEBELENRNBR
XL TR o

TRt - 465% - RASERIEH - WK2010
FoRA27THEZEARRNRTNTES - BIRAE
EAZHKERARETES EERK -HEE
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BEBITERELN16F&R - TR TE1996512
RARETIEEHEEEMESE - R1999F - {§H
EFHELE —RIKMASE - HETEARER
%o AR T EMELEENES R mETED
fEgA o

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 50, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for the Group's
overall strategic planning and business management. Mr. Wong has
approximately 16 years of experience in plastic pipe operations and
management. He served as the chairman in Shunde Liansu Industrial
from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded “Outstanding
Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’s Government of
Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a member of Shunde District,
Foshan City Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2003 and a vice president of Foshan Shunde
Longjiang General Chamber of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the
spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 40, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo
has approximately 13 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in operation management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo
won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC” by China Plastics Processing Industry Association
in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the
younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 16
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.

06 FREIR B £ @RI A R A B China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 16 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China's sales of the Group and has approximately 19 years
of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January 1999 and served
as a manager in the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 23 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management and engineering
since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was a
manufacturing engineer in the technology department at Guangdong
Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co., Limited from July
1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September 1999, he was a
deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory. Mr. Chen served as a production manager of Shunde Liansu
Industrial from September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has
been a deputy secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of
China Plastics Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor degree in polymer chemical from South China
University of Technology in July 1989.

¥ Annual Report 2012 07
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 37, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. Dr. Lin is
primarily responsible for the research and development and overseas
sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 10 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July 2002 and has
held various positions in research and development and overseas sales
since joining the Group. Over the years, Dr. Lin has won various awards
including “National May First Labor Medal” by All China Federation of
Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer
chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 37, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the factories and production facilities of the
Group and has approximately 16 years of experience in the plastic
pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has
held various positions in production management since joining the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996
until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of the plastic production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November
1999. Mr. Huang completed a program of marketing from Hubei
University of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a supervisor of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Luo has approximately 19 years of
experience in accounting and worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm
from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting
Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to December 2001 and
Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from January 2002 to
December 2007. Since January 2008, Mr. Luo has been working
for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as
a certified public accountant. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is currently an independent
director of Winowner Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600681), which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor
degree in economics from Guangdong University of Business Studies
in June 1993.

08 FREIR B £ @RI A R A B China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately 18
years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-time lawyer
at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Lin
had been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law Office and
became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr. Lin was an arbitrator of the
Guangzhou City Arbitration Commission in 2003.

Mr. Lin Dewei is currently a director and shareholder of Guangzhou
Yuegao Patent Trademark Agency Co., Ltd. (“Yuegao Patent”) and
Guangzhou Yuegao Trademark Agency Co., Ltd. (collectively known as
“Yuegao”). As the Group has entered into various agency agreements
with Yuegao for it to carry out trademark registrations, patent
applications and other related matters, Mr. Lin is not independent from
the Group. The reasons for his appointment as a non-executive director
are due to his professional qualifications and knowledge of PRC laws, as
well as his practical experience in the legal field.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bai Chongen, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Dr. Bai is
currently a Mansfield Freeman professor of economics, an associate
dean and chairman of the department of Economics in the School
of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University. Dr. Bai is
a director of the National Institute for Fiscal Studies at Tsinghua
University. Dr. Bai serves as an independent director of China-Singapore
Suzhou Industrial Park Development Group Co., Ltd. and New China
Trust Co., Ltd.. Dr. Bai had been an independent non-executive director
of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (stock code: 998), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange, from December 2006 to October 2012.
Dr. Bai obtained a doctorate degree in mathematics from University
of California, San Diego in September 1988 and a doctorate degree in
economics from Harvard University, US in June 1993.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Fung
is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name of P C Fung
& Company, a certified public accountants firm, and is a director in
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited (formally known as NCN CPA Limited).
Mr. Fung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fung is currently an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of Vantage International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel and
Inland Revenue Department’'s Users’ Committee. Given most of Mr.
Fung's directorships or positions with other companies or associations
are not full-time in nature, and Mr. Fung will not be involved in the day-
to-day operation and management of the Company, he has confirmed
that he would be able to allocate sufficient time to discharge his duties
and responsibilities to the Company. Mr. Fung obtained a master
degree in arts from Antioch University, US in March 1987.

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal litigation.
Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr.
Wong obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from
Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a bachelor degree in
law from City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong
received a postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 38, was appointed an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company on 31 December 2012. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor
degree in arts with major in accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of
experience in financial management and financial services. Mr. Cheung
is currently the vice general manager of a media company in the PRC.
Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department of Ernst & Young,
an international accounting firm, from 2000 to 2004. Mr. Cheung had
been a vice president or director at the respective investment banking
division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited, UBS AG and J.P.
Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from 2004 to 2011. From 2011
to 2012, Mr. Cheung was a vice president of a company which is listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Gao Lixin, aged 49, was appointed an independent non-executive
director and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
on 31 December 2012. Mr. Gao, a senior engineer, obtained a bachelor
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering from Chongqing
Institute of Architectural Engineering in July 1985. Mr. Gao is currently
the head of The Technology Development Promotion Centre of
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, mainly responsible
for technology policies, standards and specifications, research in
applied technology in the areas of housing and urban-rural development
as well as the assessment of new technology and new product and its
promotion.

Mr. Gao is the deputy head of The Plastic Pipe Experts Team for
National Chemical Building Material’s Coordination Group, a member
of Applied Technology Advisory Committee for New-Type Building
Material Products of Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development,
deputy secretary-general of Municipal Water Supply and Drainage
Standardisation Technical Committee for Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development, a member of Gas Standardisation Technical
Committee for Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, and
a member of National Standardisation Technical Committee of Plastic
Products.

Mr. Gao has taken part in 6 national programs for science and
technology development and key projects in the national science
& technology pillar programs such as “Key technology research on
new type of pipe network system in the city”. He also served as the
editor in chief of 7 national and industrial standards, namely “Buried
polyethylene piping systems for the supply of gaseous fuels-Part 1:
Pipes” (GB 15558.1-2003), “Technical specification for polyethylene
fuel gas pipeline engineering” (CJJ 63-2008), “Technical specification
for buried plastic pipeline of sewer engineering” (CJJ 143-2010),etc.
He published 15 academic papers, and was engaged in 4 preparation
work for technical announcements, such as announcement No. 659
“Announcement published by the Ministry of Construction concerning
“Eleventh Five-Year"” promotion and constraints on prohibited
technologies in use (the first batch)” by the Ministry of Construction.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 31, is a chief financial officer of the Group and
is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting affairs.
Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he worked
as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch manager
of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan Shunde
Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a diploma
in finance from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in
September 2005 as well as a program in laws at Guangdong University
of Business Studies from March 2007 to January 2010.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 35, is a joint company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000
to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004
to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007
to September 2009. The latter two firms are amongst the biggest
international accounting firms. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor
degree in Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September
2000 and obtained a master degree in business administration from
University of South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of
the CPA Australia.

Mr. Yuan Shuixian, aged 33, is a joint company secretary of the
Company. Since he joined the Group in August 2005, Mr. Yuan has
acted as secretary to the chairman of the Board. Prior joining to the
Group, Mr. Yuan was a teacher in Heshun High School located at
Nanhai District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province from July 2002 to
July 2005. He graduated from South China Normal University with a
bachelor’s degree in literature (specialised in English) in July 2002.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Liansu is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standard of corporate governance practices,
the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the Company
from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the Shareholders
for continual improvement, comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements and fulfill its commitment of pursuing excellent
corporate governance. In the opinion of the directors, the Company
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code governing securities transactions
by directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry to the
directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
The Model Code is also applicable to other specific senior management
officers of the Company. The directors and chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report on pages 40 to 41.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-executive
directors. The term of office of each of the above directors is 3 years
or within 3 years, which can be terminated by 3 month prior notice by
either party. During the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the
date of this annual report, Mr. Cheung Man Yu and Mr. Gao Lixin were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
with effect from 31 December 2012.
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. In addition, at every annual general meeting of the Company,
not less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. If there
exists any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, the
disclosure has been published in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of
the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in
the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner.
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda.
The chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the joint company secretaries. With
the assistance of the chief executive and the joint company secretaries,
the chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on
any issues put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Non-executive director provides various expertise and experiences and
conduct reviews and maintain balance to safeguard the interests of the
Group and the Shareholders. He participates in Board meetings and
committee meetings and makes independent judgements on issues
related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest conflicts and
management process so as to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
are properly considered.
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations made by each of
the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded
all independent non-executive directors as independent parties in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial and control and personnel in accordance
with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's independent
auditor to review the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2012 and to audit the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2012. The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the annual report and the
interim report. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012, the directors have selected and applied appropriate
accounting policies and have made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor
of the Company on the Company's financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 52 to 53.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board convened five
meetings to review operating performance and funding requirement,
recent market conditions, considered and approved the Group's overall
strategy, audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011
and reviewed interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2012.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee, attended
the annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company held on 31 May
2012.
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BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)
The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board
at the meetings held in 2012:

HERYAEREREORH
Meetings attended/eligible to attend"

BRRBFAE EEg BRZEEE REZEE FMZzEE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
X Directors AGM Board Committee Committee Committee
HITES Executive directors
EHE Wong Luen Hei " 5/5 - " n
imte Zuo Manlun n 5/5 - 7 22
P 3 Zuo Xiaoping "N 3/5 - - -
FEER Lai Zhigiang n 4f5 B - -
FLIKEE Kong Zhaocong n 4/5 - - -
PREIR Chen Guonan n 5/5 - - -
e Lin Shaoquan n 5/5 - - -
HEK Huang Guirong 01 5/5 - - -
BZIE Luo Jianfeng 1n 5/5 - - -
FHTES Non-executive director
Wiz Lin Dewei 17N 5/5 22 - -
BYFEHITEE  Independent non-executive directors
HER Bai Chongen 01 35 - 0/1 12
BEE Fung Pui Cheung 17N 5/5 22 n 22
TEIZ Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ”n 2/58 1/28 n 12
RN F Cheung Man Yu® - 1n 171 - -
LR Gao Lixin® - 7 - 0/0 -
Hat Notes

1. $EH§$&£EE‘HEE §$i’ﬁl%ﬁ% CEBERESEM 1.

Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of

REegHECHERS video conference in accordance with the Articles.
2. R2012F 12 A3 HEZTAES - Directors who were appointed with effect from 31 December 2012.
3. HAF—AHEERELHE - One of which by proxy.
4. M2012F A - EEMR R A SR There was no other general meeting held in 2012.
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PORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD (Continued)

BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meeting to directors and
the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents will be provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman will give a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
may gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner and
may receive advice and services from the joint company secretaries.
The minutes of Board meetings are kept by the joint company
secretaries and are available for inspection by directors and the auditor
of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company would provide a comprehensive induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong
Companies Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure his/her
sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The joint company secretaries report from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices and other regulatory regime to the directors with written
materials, as well as organise seminars on the professional knowledge
and latest development of regulatory requirements related to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

During the year of 2012, there was an in-house seminar conducted
covering the topic of compliance to the Indenture of the Senior Notes
for the directors. Briefings on the directors’ duties were also given to
the newly appointed independent non-executive directors.

RESPONSIBILITY OF JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries report to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedure of the Board and ensure the Board is
fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate governance
development and has considered their opinions when making a
decision. The joint company secretaries are also directly responsible
for the Group's compliance with its continuing obligations under the
Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures Ordinance
and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company’s audit committee (" Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) (collectively
"Board Committees”). Board Committees can engage
intermediaries to provide professional opinions and the reasonable
expenses incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

known as

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent non-
executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu who was appointed with
effect from 31 December 2012 (both are independent non-executive
directors). The major responsibility of the Audit Committee is to
conduct independent and objective audit of the truth and accuracy
of the Group’s economic operation and financial activities, financial
policies, financial procedures, internal control, external audit, internal
audit, financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year.
In 2012, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 16.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2012:

o review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2011, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

° review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2011, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2012 annual general

meeting;
o review of continuing connected transactions;
° review of the Group internal audit reports;

review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2012, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval,
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
° review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2012;

o consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

° review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2011 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2012, with recommendations to
the Board for approval; and

° review of the annual report on effectiveness of internal controls
under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2012 with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

ARBEET
RMB million
FEETRS Annual audit services 462
JEZEETBRFEN Non-audit services' 2.03
wast Total 6.65
KiaEm EH&EH?\\E%V%(%E’HF%E‘#HE%% FEEERH Note”  The non-audit service fees paid or payable to the external auditors were
DA HHEERREREEENER - ERIMNEZ mainly for reviewing the Company’s interim results and advice on taxation
AT E M - A ERHZ SR AR ARG RS matters. The provision of these services by external auditors were cost
Ko effective and efficient due to their professional knowledge.
yMEse REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FTNEEShABKEHEK  BIRITEEE The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
5‘E$ CHITESRLOORMmEE  BEERE - Eli Mr. Wong Luen Hei (executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive

BEETMIBRREE(BHAEBYIERNTES) - 5
B N2012E3 A 16 AR TEMERL A
FWNEBSESE -

director), Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Dr. Bai Chongen and Mr. Wong Kwok
Ho Jonathan (all of them are independent non-executive directors). On
16 March 2012, Mr. Fung Pui Cheung has replaced Mr. Wong Luen Hei
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

In order to determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to
members of the Board, market rates and factors such as each
director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken into
account. The following factors are considered when determining the
remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

o individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

o changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand

fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2012, the Remuneration Committee convened two meetings
and made the recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance record
of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 16.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. In addition, the
remuneration of the three senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Fung Pui Cheung,
Dr. Bai Chongen, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Gao Lixin
who was appointed with effect from 31 December 2012 (all of them
are independent non-executive directors). The major duty of the
Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations on
the candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company's directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2012, the Nomination Committee convened one meetings. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the annual general meeting on 31 May 2012,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee recommended the Board on
the appointments of two independent non-executive directors. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page
16.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system in the aspects of finance, operation, compliance control
and risk management functions with the assistance of the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal control includes the establishment of
a management structure that defines the authority to help the Group
achieve its business targets, protect assets to prevent unauthorised
embezzlement or handling, ensuring maintaining proper accounting
records as reliable financial data for internal use and publication and
ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
system aims to provide reasonable (but not absolute) assurance
that there are no material misstatements or losses and manage (but
not completely eliminate) the risks of the Group's operating system
failure and failure to achieve business objectives. Having reviewed the
Group's internal control report, the Board considers the internal control
system effective and appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

"

The Group has formulated a
employees can report any matters to the Chairman or the Audit

whistleblowing policy” whereby

Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the designated
address or by phone. Such matters may include misconduct, irregular
conduct or fraud regarding financial matters and accounting practices
without fear of being accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also
report similar concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit
Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS ON
REQUISITION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request for the
convening of extraordinary general meetings following the procedures
below:

o Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office. The requisition shall specify
the object of the meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s),
and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company.

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which the meeting may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS ON

REQUISITION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’ notice
in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of
the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the
meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in
the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor relations and
media relations consultant whose contact details are provided in the
“Corporate Information” section of this Annual Report. In addition,
the Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’s branch share registrar, if they have
any enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and general meetings. The Company encourages the
Shareholders to attend the Company’s general meetings. The Group's
financial and other information is also published on the website of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.liansu.com).

The Company'’s senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit its plants.

3R Annual Report 2012 23



PEERRE @)

[:]
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

HEEBEERRRVER @

AREREEMEL  ARFBERBIREE
BENEREE  RICEERE  BRERHRE

BEHURANAMCEEE  MBRBERBERATR
BEBADNRBNER - AARKBEGERLE
EEEE - HITE MR 2 MR EERE -

IFREEREERE

ARRREREEBRBBRIGIAR -
SEIEE - AR T ERTERITEEL R
RAEWAREXRER - IS5 ERE AR
FHABBETI R o ARABIEERRHAR
EAHRZEEENARGLEFSH - BB D
m%%r%ﬁi¢%¥ﬁﬁ§mmaﬁmamﬁ
e EEREEITHREALERL -

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct activities
related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its corporate
responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate knowledge
and understanding of the Company’s operating strategy, financial
performance and development prospects. The Company will actively
develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts and
media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, nor does the company engage in discussion on events
or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will not initiate
any meeting or conference call with public in which these matters
are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the
disclosure of annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts
until the announcement of the annual results or the interim results.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

As a leading domestic manufacturer of plastic pipes and pipe fittings,
the Group has dedicated itself to providing a full range of high quality
products to customers through its extensive sales network and
production bases throughout the nation. The Group’s product line
covers seven major areas, including: water supply, drainage, power
supply and telecommunications, gas supply, agriculture, floor heating
and fire prevention. To meet market demand and realise synergies
among different segments, the Group has expanded into new home
building material product segments, such as sanitary products, holistic
kitchens, and plastic-steel doors and windows in order to nurture
growth drivers through product diversification. Headquartered in
Shunde, Guangdong Province, the Group has built a strategic network
of sales and various production bases that cover the entire nation,
comprising primarily 14 production bases located in 11 provinces
across China. As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s design production
capacity was 1.75 million tonnes. With expansion and planning of
production capacity serving as the Group's principal objectives for
strategic development, the Group aims to carry out capacity expansion
plans for its existing production bases in Guangdong, Wuhan and
Guiyang, while new bases in Hainan, Yunnan and Shandong remain
under construction.

ANALYSIS OF MARKET CONDITIONS

Looking back at 2012, the Eurozone debt crisis continued to affect
the recovery of the global economy, and the Chinese government set
a cautious target for steady economic growth with credit tightening
policies. This has affected the investments in fixed assets and put
pressure on general demand for the plastic pipe industry. Faced with
the challenges of today’s general business environment, the plastic
pipe industry, with the help of support policies implemented by the
Chinese government, has built a solid foundation upon which demand
for plastic pipe has been maintained through on going urbanisation,
construction of housing units for social security recipients as well as
expanding investments in hydraulic engineering and outdated pipe
network replacement.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF MARKET CONDITIONS (Continued)

As a key industry leader, the Group has been optimising its sales
network, strengthening efforts on research and development, investing
in new products and technologies, and enhancing its brand name. By
effectively isolating and addressing market trends as well as refining
and developing target markets, the Group has been able to realise
steady growth in its core business operations.

During the year under review, the Group achieved healthy operating
and financial performance results. Revenue was RMB10,891 million,
an increase of RMB748 million or 7.4% over 2011. Gross profit for the
year ended 31 December 2012 came to RMB2,649 million, an increase
of 8.0% over 2011. Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.41 in 2012.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic pipes
and pipe fittings by product for 2012 and 2011:

20124 20114
2012 2011

LT T ON fhE A

ARKEHER Bt AREBET ARt

% of total % of total

RMB million revenue RMB million revenue

oK Water supply 4149 39.7% 3,881 39.1%

Pk Drainage 394 31.71% 3,590 36.2%
BAMERBA Power supply and

telecommunications 1,870 17.9% 1,816 18.3%

R RE Gas supply 130 1.3% 99 1.0%

EAbm QOtherst 358 3.4% 535 5.4%

st Total 10,448 100.0% 9,921 100.0%

Fraro [Hib I RERA - B FOEb -

Note™ "“Others" include agricultural use, floor heating and fire prevention.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2012, the Chinese government continued to implement control
policies on the property market while economic growth still needs
to be stabilised. The property market in the PRC received a further
boost during the second half of 2012 after a large number of housing
units were released to social security recipients towards the end of
2012, heightening the demand for plastic pipes. As announced by the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC, the
construction of approximately 34 million government-subsidised units
began and approximately 21 million affordable units were completed
with fiscal expenditure of RMB380.04 billion on the government-
subsidised units at the end of 2012, an increase of RMB45.75 billion or
13.7% over 2011.

In June 2012, the National Development and Reform Commission
issued the “Development Plan on Hydraulic Engineering (Years 2011-
2015)," approved by the State Council, which sets out a detailed
plan on hydraulic engineering development projects in the PRC for
the coming years. According to the Ministry of Finance of the PRC,
between 2012 to 2015 a total of RMB22.8 billion will be invested
in small farm-based water projects, comprehensive agricultural
development, modern agriculture production development, and
agricultural technological promotion. These investments will
support the goals of the “saving water and increasing productivity”
campaign held in four regional provinces of northeast China, including
Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning and Inner Mongolia. The Ministry of
Finance has earmarked RMB4.8 billion for developing high-performance
irrigation systems covering 8 million mu of land in 2012.

Effective capacity expansion with rapid response to market
demands

Given China's on-going stable economic growth, coupled with
advancements in urbanisation, and continuous development of housing
units for social security recipients, the plastic pipe industry is expected
to maintain sound and stable growth. Based on a long-term optimistic
view of plastic piping needs in the market, the Group has continued to
increase its production capacity according to actual market conditions in
order to meet future demand. Against the backdrop of the challenging
operating environment in 2012, the Group remained committed
to going forward with an orderly capacity expansion, enhancing its
domestic and international sales network, developing targeted market
segments and optimising product portfolio. As a result, the Group's
core competitiveness was strengthened and improved.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Effective capacity expansion with rapid response to market
demands (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group spent RMB1,422 million to
complete its capacity expansion plans of which investments in new
home building material product machineries accounted for RMB75
million. The Group’s new production base in Shaanxi began production
in 2012 as scheduled to meet the demand from local markets and
further increase the Group's market share in the surrounding regions.

Effective enhancement and development of sales networks and
further consolidation of industry leadership

The general overall business environment was materially affected
by the slowdown of the global economic recovery in 2012, and the
plastic pipe industry was not immune to the effects. The Group,
however, has actively focused on business development within the
plastic pipe industry boosted by its cutting-edge technologies and
products. As a market leader, the Group continues to leverage its core
strengths, responding quickly to market demand while refining its
sales networks. With this in mind, the Group has increased its share
in various targeted regions, including southern China while deepening
business development in the third and fourth tier cities and taking
advantage of its respected brand name. Ultimately the Group was still
able to maintain stable performance results and achieve solid growth
while facing today’s daunting business environment. This also further
demonstrates the commitment of the Group has toward honing its
sales networks, which has been serving as a solid foundation for its
long-term development.

The table below sets out the breakdown of sales revenue by region for
2012 and 2011:

2012 201148
2012 2011

(- UON fhB A

ARBEER Bt AREFET ARt

% of total % of total

@ Region RMB million revenue RMB million revenue
B Southern China 6,882 63.2% 6,852 67.6%
O E Southwestern China 1,070 9.8% 916 9.0%
#eh Central China 1,035 95% 833 8.2%
Ey) Eastern China 549 5.0% 463 4.6%
Bl Northern China 689 6.3% 581 5.7%
[iiplé: i1 Northwestern China 303 2.8% 228 2.3%
ESla: il Northeastern China 222 21% 176 1.7%
HEIE SN Qutside China 14 1.3% 94 0.9%
faEr Total 10,891 100.0% 10,143 100.0%

Bratn ZREBEEBEFBRRT B MERME -

Note!" Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to financial
statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Effective enhancement and development of sales networks and
further consolidation of industry leadership (Continued)

The Group's extensive sales network is one of its competitive
advantages. The Group had 1,300 independent distributors at the
end of December 2012. Supported by the Group’s existing marketing
capabilities, the Group has been expanding and strengthening its
domestic sales network while actively developing overseas markets.

Leveraging economies of scale and operating sustainably

In 2012, despite a complicated and challenging business environment,
the Group continued to maintain stringent cost controls, while also
fortifying its existing customer base, developing new customers
and leveraging economies of scale from its integrated competitive
advantages. At the end of the year, the Group achieved a sales volume
of plastic pipes and pipe fittings totalling 1,085,415 tonnes for 2012,
representing a growth of 124,579 tonnes or 13.0% compared to 20711.

The table below sets out the breakdown of sales volume, revenue and
average selling price by product material for 2012 and 2011:

012% 0115 4
012 01 Changein
#E WA THEER HE WA THER He WA THEE
Sales Average Sales Average Sales Average
volume Revenue  selling price volume Revenue  selling price volume Revenue  selling price
B ARMEER AR¥ B AREEBER ARE
Tonne ~ RMB million RMB Tonng ~ RMB million RMB (%) (%) (%)
BHEEREHR Plastic pipes and pipe fitings
—PyCo —PyC 855,171 6,845 7999 753,784 6,636 8870 135 2 (98)
—3EPVCR ~Non-PVC® 229638 3603 15,690 207,052 323 15624 109 114 04
1,085,415 10448 9,626 960,836 991 10325 130 53 (6.)
Hfpo Others® TEFANA M3 TEENA  EENA W TEANA TEANA 95 MEENA
st Total 1,085,415 10891  FERANA 960,836 018 TEENA  TEANA 14 TERNA
Kiat - Notes:
1. [PVC|— RN EESHMEE REEERIEENT 1. “PVC" refers to material used in the manufacture of plastic pipes with high
#t e mechanical strength and hardness.
2. [SEPVC IR E 8 M E 1 22 PEF| MPP-RE © 2. “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE and
PPR.
3. [Efb | BERE  RESVMERREMME - [Hi] 3. “Others” include ancillary, home building material products and other materials.

B A BT IEAMRET - B TRERNEEENLA
BEEBERNNTR -

Sales volumes for “Others” are measured in units rather than tonnes and the
size of the units between different products may vary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Leveraging economies of scale and operating sustainably
(Continued)

The Group optimised its pricing strategy in a situation-specific manner
and maintained its gross profit margin during the year under review.
The average selling price of the Group’s plastic pipes and pipe fittings
decreased to RMB9,626 per tonne from RMB10,325 per tonne. The
average cost of sales of plastic pipes and pipe fittings decreased to
RMB7,278 per tonne from RMB7,856 per tonne.

Diversifying the product portfolio and providing high quality
products

During the year under review, in recognition of the Group's strengths
in research and development (“R&D") and its continued investments in
innovation, the Group had the honour of being named a " State-certified
Enterprise Technology Center” by the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology of the
PRC, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the General Administration of
Customs of the PRC and the State Administration of Taxation.

The Group is committed to developing new products, improving
production efficiencies, reducing production costs and enhancing
product functions. Looking back at 2012, according to the “12th Five-
Year Plan of National Environmental Protection”, RMB3.4 trillion was
earmarked for investment in environmental projects during the 12th
Five-Year Plan while the No.1 Circular called for the accelerated reform
of hydraulic engineering supported by a total investment of RMB4
trillion in 10 years. With various potential opportunities arising from
these two policies, including an expected rise in demand brought about
by the construction of rural potable water security systems, central gas
supply systems as well as heating and other requirements for building
materials in rural areas, the Group continued to focus its R&D efforts
on two principal strategic objectives: high performance and low energy-
consumption.

In order for the Group’s new business of home building materials and
the internationalisation of its businesses, the Group will enhance the
trademark with five major concepts of “Link, Easy, Safe, Share and
Open” in 2013 to help better convey the overarching philosophy of the
Group, which is to: “Create a relaxing life for residents”.

In response to the trend of fitted-out properties, the Group has
developed a range of novel home building material products, including
plastic-steel doors and windows, sanitary products, holistic kitchens
and other items:
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Diversifying the product portfolio and providing high quality
products (Continued)

Plastic-steel doors and windows

The Group supplies integrated door and window system solutions.
Currently, there are 3 production bases for door and window assembly
in Guangdong Heshan, Jilin Changchun and North America, which offer
a variety of products to the market.

Sanitary products

The Group has a dedicated professional sanitary product design and
R&D team as well as independent sanitary production plants. Both are
at the cutting edge of the industry in terms of the quality and style of
the products. Marketed items include sanitary hardware, sanitary ware
and sanitary furniture.

Holistic kitchen

The Group has professional international design as well as R&D team
to support the Group's holistic kitchen operations. The Group adopts
standardised development models and utilise its advantages of mass
production. In addition, the Group is supplied with kitchen appliances
from a well-known American home appliance brand to provide
customers with holistic kitchen services and products of the highest
quality.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS

Other revenue, income and gains amounted to RMB116 million for
2012, representing a decrease of 21.9% over 2011. The decrease
was primarily attributable to no exchange gain and less gain on the
repurchase and cancellation of the Senior Notes in 2012.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses for 2012 rose by 19.9% to RMB544
million as compared with 2011 due to an increase in salaries and
benefits paid to sales staff, marketing related expenses and packaging
costs from the growth in sales.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses for 2012 rose by 21.0% to RMB381 million as
compared with 2011, primarily due to increase in salaries and benefits
of administrative staff and depreciation on office premises and related
equipment.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses for 2012 rose by 29.0% to RMB212 million as
compared with 2011, primarily due to increase in impairment of trade
receivables and research and development expenditures.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs for 2012 amounted to RMB146 million, representing an
increase of 32.3% as compared with 2011, primarily due to increase in
interest on the Senior Notes.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group's effective tax rate decreased from 19.0% in 2011 to 16.9%
in 2012 mainly because the PRC CIT was over provided in 2011 and
the reduction of the deferred tax liabilities in 2012.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
RMB1,238 million for 2012 representing a decrease of 1.8% from
RMB1,261 million for 2011.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING (“IPO")

The net proceeds from the Company's IPO in June 2010 after
deducting the relevant expenses were approximately HK$1,860 million
(approximately RMB1,629 million equivalent).

Up to 31 December 2012, approximately HK$1,686 million of the net
proceeds from the IPO has been applied in accordance with the results
of allocation announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2010 (the
“Announcement”). The unutilised balance has been deposited with
financial institutions and will be applied in the manner as stated in the
Announcement.
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UPDATES ON THE STATUS OF THE
COMPANY’'S EXPANSION PLANS

Up to 31 December 2012, the Group has totally spent RMB3,222
million on its expansion plans, as described in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Business — Production Facilities and Production
Process”. The design annual production capacity of the Group reached
1.75 million tonnes at the end of December 2012.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities are subject to effective centralised
management and supervision. The Group maintains reasonable gearing
level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total debts of approximately
RMB2,225 million (2011: RMB1,745 million), of which 6.9% was
denominated in Renminbi, 80.0% was denominated in US dollars
and 13.1% was denominated in HK dollars. Other than approximately
US$259 million of the outstanding Senior Notes due in 2016, the
Group's borrowings are subject to floating rates ranging from 1.33% to
5.50% per annum with maturity periods ranging from within one year
to three years.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB5,113 million and RMB2,039 million
respectively. The Group's current ratio (that is, the ratio of current
assets over current liabilities) and the quick ratio (that is, the ratio of
current assets less inventories over current liabilities) reduced to 2.51
and 1.64 from 4.36 and 3.11 in 2011, respectively. The Group’s total
equity increased to approximately RMB6,028 million (2011: RMB4,987
million). The Group's gearing ratio (calculated based on the basis of the
total debts, i.e. total bank loans and other borrowings, divided by the
sum of total debts and total equity) stood at a healthy level of 27.0%
as compared to 25.9% in 2011 due to the drawing of new bank loans
during the year.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of approximately
RMB1,922 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB2,117 million) as
well as unutilised banking facilities, the directors consider that the Group
has sufficient working capital for its operation and future development.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's inventories with an
aggregate net carrying amount of approximately RMB26 million (2011:
certain of the Group's property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB156 million) were pledged to certain banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group. The shares of certain subsidiaries of
the Company incorporated outside the PRC were pledged as securities
for issuance of the Senior Notes.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s borrowings are mainly denominated in US dollars but
its cash flow is generated from operations whose revenue was
denominated principally in Renminbi. As a result, the depreciation
of Renminbi affected to the Group's results for 2012. Save for the
aforesaid, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign exchange
risk and no hedging has been arranged on the abovementioned
exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of approximately
7,100 employees including directors. Total staff costs were RMB435
million for the year. Employees are remunerated based on their work
performance, professional experience and the prevailing industry
practice. The Group also made contributions to the statutory pension
scheme for its employees in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

PROSPECTS

While the overall demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings is still being
affected by the slow global economic recovery and the Eurozone debt
crisis, stable growth in domestic demand will be sustained by further
advancement of China's industrialisation, urbanisation and information
technology expansion. It has also been stated in the report of the 18th
CPC National Congress that growth targets in gross domestic product
and per capita income for both urban and rural residents will be realised
by 2020. Ongoing implementation of major housing unit construction
for social security recipients, as well as for urban infrastructure and
new agricultural villages, is expected to provide plastic pipe and pipe
fitting markets with steady growth prospects. For this reason, the
Group is confident about looking forward to sound and stable business
development in 2013. The Group will, therefore, continue to focus on
the implementation of its core strategies and business development.
Moreover, the Group will also look to further enhance market planning
efforts in order to solidify its position as an industry leader.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group will continue to forge ahead on its business growth path by
adopting these three major developmental strategies:

1. Expand the Group's nationwide sales network and tap
international markets: In the future, the Group will continue to
actively expand its sales networks, refine target market segments
and enhance the strategic distribution of sales channels in
response to market changes. In addition to consolidating the
Group's position in southern China, a primary geographic market,
it will also strive to increase market share elsewhere. While
pursuing organic sales network expansion, the Group will also
increase its marketing efforts in order to further enhance brand
recognition and expand the Group’s customer base with a view
to gain new market share.

2. Progressive expansion of production capacity to meet
market demand: Given China’s ongoing urbanisation and the
implementation of various policies in agricultural development
and hydraulic engineering, China's plastic pipe industry is
expected to enjoy consistent growth in the future. The Group
will implement the latest phase of its capacity expansion plan
to ensure that market demands are being met. The Group's
designated capacity is expected to increase by 100,000 tonnes to
150,000 tonnes in 2013. The Group has acquired land in Hainan,
Yunnan and Shandong for the construction of new production
bases. Among these, the Group's production base in Hainan
which will begin operations in 2013. The Group’s production
bases in Guangdong, Wuhan and Guiyang are carrying out the
expansion plan.

3. New product development: The Group will continue to focus on
R&D, production efficiency, production cost control and product
functionality enhancement. To this end, the Group will continue
to launch new home building materials such as sanitary products,
holistic kitchens and plastic-steel doors and windows, to create
future growth drivers and strengthen its overall competitiveness
through product diversification.
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Set out below are the annual report presented by the Board together
with the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entity are
set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 54 to 134.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK12
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Proposed
Final Dividend"”) (2011: HK12 cents per share), which will be paid out
of profits and/or share premium of the Company, to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 11 June 2013, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 31 May 2013 (the “2013 AGM"). It is expected that the
Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Thursday, 20 June 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

()  FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2013 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 28 May 2013 to Friday, 31 May 2013, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2013 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

() FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 7 June 2013 to Tuesday, 11 June 2013, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June 2013.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 3.
The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

The details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

At 31 December 2012, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB2,125 million (2011: RMB2,052 million). The amount
of RMB1,748 million (2011: RMB1,684 million) represented the
Company’s share premium which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the divided is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total turnover attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% of the Group's
total turnover. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers was less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.
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DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu (appointed on 31 December 2012)
Mr. Gao Lixin (appointed on 31 December 2012)

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Wong Luen Hei, Mr. Kong Zhaocong, Dr. Bai Chongen, Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, Mr. Cheung Man Yu and
Mr. Gao Lixin are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2013 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its

A NGHREIEHIEI2EERANATIFEMZEEM  associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
ERsE - SRR ESTRIZEM A AN R MBS FT  recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
HMEZS BORB AT ¢ 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
BTN RN
RENE R T BRI BRITRA
®E L) TERHAY HERGHEY HWEZL
Number of
underlying
shares to be Percentage of
allotted upon the issued
Number of issued exercise of share capital of
Name Capacity ordinary shares held™ share options® the Company
EEELE RZELERAY 2,112,229,000 (L) - 69.63%
Mr. Wong Luen Hei Held by controlled corporation
mACERAY 384,800 (L) 1,923,200 (L) 0.07%
Held by spouse®
2,112,613,800 (L) 1,923,200 (L) 69.70%
XS L HfcERHAY 2,112,229,000 (L) - 69.63%
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping Held by spouse®
BEaAAe 384,800 (L) 1,923,200 (L) 0.07%
Beneficial owner®
2,112,613,800 (L) 1,923,200 (L) 69.70%
Emfmsed ERERAY - 3,842,000 (L) 0.13%
Mr. Zuo Manlun Beneficial owner®
[t EREAAY - 1,733,000 (L) 0.06%
Mr. Lai Zhigiang Beneficial owner®
FLKIESE A EREAAY - 2,308,000 (L) 0.08%
Mr. Kong Zhaocong Beneficial owner @
FREIR A4 BEnAAY - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Mr. Chen Guonan Beneficial owner®
b2t EaHAAY - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Dr Lin Shaoquan Beneficial owner®
BEEKESE EREAAY - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Mr. Huang Guirong Beneficial owner®
RIS EREAAY - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Mr. Luo Jianfeng Beneficial owner®
wiEE s EREAAY - 692,000 (L) 0.02%
Mr. Lin Dewei Beneficial owner®
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
2. These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which is wholly-owned

by Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong"). Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr.
Wong, and therefore Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company in which Mr. Wong is interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding of 384,800 shares of the Company and was
granted with options to subscribe for 1,923,200 shares of the Company with
an exercise price of HK$1.82 per share under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
(“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company with effect from
14 May 2010. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr.
Wong is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping is interested by virtue of the SFO.

4. All other directors’ interests represent the number of shares to be issued upon
the exercise in full of the options granted to them with an exercise price of
HK$1.82 per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

BENE BT EEATE BT
RSB 54 EEREE LENERd
Number of issued Percentage of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held" share capital of the Company
=8 EXHmE A 2,112,229,000 (L) 69.63%
New Fortune Beneficial owner®?
Kiet - Notes:
1. FRLIEZATRZEEZELENTE - 1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
2. BEERTERZEREREAEA BEFFRAE 2. Mr. Wong is the ultimate beneficial owner of New Fortune. Under Part XV of

BHIEXVED » BALRRIEREZERM 2 -
M b X[ EERITRARNBRL - BRI R (EE
EREE SRR | —HREE -

the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to have an interest in these shares, as disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

3 Annual Report 2012 41



EEEWRE@®

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)

TERRNWESZFRE @)

iﬂtﬂxf\iﬁiiir§$&ﬁﬂz BER AR - R
 REEENER AR | — BTl a kD iER o
ﬁ?ﬁixﬁﬁ%g%m\ ' 5@2012&12)5131 = IR NN
%%ﬁﬂ\%ﬂ%fﬂﬂ/\i%ﬁ($£ﬂ§$&ﬁﬂz

BHERINAARRRERR D SABER O T EER
?F 55 R EE 5] 58336 16K7B TR E R S e ac sk

E’\Jfﬂ—ﬁEm ) Y-

RS

AT E 201045 7 14 H 5140 i 18 78 I 5
2 BUEARRERNERALFAEER RERH
fBRE - RIABRGERTEINFIBIT

1. BREE
AR F2010F56 A 14 AR B G H I E—T8
RS ([BBAERTE)) - MazBRERE
FEIMIEREERNBRERAETE - XAF]
RERT MARRE AR ZIR D - 176k
SHE BERRHE - FA2012FE12 A31 BIRIBRE
AR AE T &I JR R B SN BB AR A -

2. BEXRAMBEABRETE
(a) FRBE

X ERAB 4% B B8 5201045 A 14 B M9
HEMRBREIENE X AREER
BREAZEELTREREAQRE
EEAERMEE  HEEEAERN
NEEHEFERBERYE @ &K
HERSNBTNER - ARMA &R
BREHAEEES  BRIKME
HMEZR REEEBBFNAEEE
B ERSIRIINEES  SEZRERE
?a HERRERR -

BRARBERNBRE SN ERG
BN A TR 29

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The above shares were the same shares as set out under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes on 14 May 2010,
pursuant to which the Company is entitled to grant options prior to and
after the IPO. The details of both share option schemes are as follows:

1. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on
14 May 2010 and the summary of terms of such Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the Prospectus. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme during the year and there were no
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2012.

2. PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Summary of terms

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
approved by the Shareholders pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders dated 14 May 2010, is to
give employees an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate them to optimise their
future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to
reward them for their past contributions, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with
such employees who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance,
growth or success of the Group.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2.  PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

SR EEERTENBRE (b) Outstanding options granted
BRAFBERERETZINAERE All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
BERED 72010F5 21 HIER T - K& were granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1
BASZAOREENVBTL - FR - B paid by each grantee. During the year, no share option
LA B R RE 1 7T (58 Ja Sk bS8 Uk o were granted or cancelled under the Pre-IPO Share Option
MEEREREE A AHEEER Scheme other than those exercised and lapsed/forfeited as
FEET RIS SR S - mentioned below.
HE2012F12A3BIEFERN & Details of the movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options
KA E R BB A BB - during the year ended 31 December 2012 were as follows:
BREZE
Number of options
SHEERR AR TEE  R01/01/2012 RE RER  H31/12/2012
EEF i B E AJ4TREEA0 BT MATE  RTEY KBORK EARTE
Lapsed/
Outstanding  Exercised forfeited  Outstanding

Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at

participant Date of grant Option period™  price HK$ 01/01/2012  the year® theyear  31/12/2012

THHER

Chief executive

TRRTE 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 3,842,000 - - 3,842,000

Mr. Zuo Manlun 22/06/2014 @

B=

Directors

S a 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 2,308,000 (384,800) - 1,923,200

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping 22/06/2014 @

RBERT A 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 2,008,000 (275,000) - 1,733,000

Mr. Lai Zhigiang 22/06/2014 @

FLIKEREAE 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 2,308,000 - - 2,308,000

Mr. Kong Zhaocong 22/06/2014 @

BREIR LA 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 - - 1,927,000

Mr. Chen Guonan 22/06/2014 ©

ml2EL 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 - - 1,927,000

Dr. Lin Shaoquan 22/06/2014 @
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2.  PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Outstanding options granted (Continued)

BREHA
Number of options
SEEMR B TEE  R0/01/2012 RNE RER  A31122012
R ZH B AT BT MATHE  ATEY RBORK ERTE
Lapsed/
Outstanding  Exercised forfeited  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at
participant Date of grant" Option period®  price HK$ 01/01/2012  the year® theyear  31/12/2012
BERAE 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 182 1,927,000 - - 1,927,000
Mr. Huang Guirong 22/06/2014 @
BREfE 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 182 1,927,000 - - 1,927,000
Mr. Luo Jianfeng 22/06/2014 ®
WiEE xS 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 182 692,000 - - 692,000
Mr. Lin Dewei 22/06/2014 @
HEE/G 15,024,000 (659,800) - 14,364,200
Subtotal directors
EERTBER G 18,866,000 (659,800) - 18,206,200
Subtotal directors and
chief executive

fEE"
Employees®?
At
In aggregate 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 182 88357800  (27,035600)  (1,640,150) 59,682,050

22/06/2014 @
wmst 107,223800  (27,695,400)  (1,640,150) 77,888,250
Total

Hat - Notes:

1. AR BEnRRAEREAF -

2. FZERREADAFEARRNMEAL ©

1.

2.

BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited

All dates are shown in the format of day/month/year.

None of such grantees is a connected person of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2. PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Outstanding options granted (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. The options are exercisable from 23 June 2011 to 22 June 2014
(both days inclusive) subject to the following vesting periods:

(i) up to 256% of the options commencing on 23 June 2011;

(ii) up to 60% of the options (including the options not
exercised under the limit prescribed for in the previous
period) commencing on 23 June 2012; and

(iii) up to 100% of the options (including the options not
exercised under the limit prescribed for in the previous
periods) commencing on 23 June 2013.

4. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$4.73.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group. The controlling Shareholder being
New Fortune and Mr. Wong Luen Hei (the “Controlling Shareholder”), has
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Group dated 14 May
2010 (the "Deed of Non-Competition™).

The directors are of the view that the Group’'s measures adopted by the
Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-Competition are
adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-competition undertakings.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-Competition, including any potential conflicts of interest
and competition arising from the taking up by the Controlling Shareholder of
opportunities rejected by the Group pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition.
Based on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-Competition has
been complied with and has been effectively enforced.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB478,000 (2011: RMB1,665,000).

SENIOR NOTES

As at 31 December 2012, the outstanding principal amount of the
Senior Notes was US$258,880,000. The details of the Senior Notes are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For year ended 31 December 2012, save for the Company’s
repurchase and cancellation of the Senior Notes in the principal amount
of US$9,820,000 at the aggregate consideration of approximately
US$8,880,000 (including accrued interest), which was announced on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 27 June 2012,
the Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 15 January 2013, Star Excel Investment Limited (the “Vendor”),
Mr. Wong Luen Hei, (“Mr. Wong") as guarantor of the obligations
of the Vendor (the “Guarantor”) and Liansu Group Company Limited
(the “Purchaser”), being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) to acquire the entire equity interest of
Guangdong Liansu Valve Co., Ltd. at the consideration of RMB116
million (the “Acquisition”). For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 15 January 2013.

As the Vendor is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong, an executive director
and the ultimate controlling Shareholder, the Vendor and the Guarantor
are regarded as connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction
of the Company which was only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but was exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14.32 of the Listing
Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

The directors of the Company (including the independent non-executive
directors), having received the opinion on the fairness in relation to the
Acquisition from Investec Capital Asia Limited, an independent financial
adviser to the Company appointed pursuant to the indenture dated 13
May 2011 entered into between, among others, the Company and the
Bank of New York Mellon in relation to the Senior Notes, were of the
view that the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement were fair and
reasonable and the entering into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement
was in the interests of the Group and the Shareholders (other than Mr.
Wong and his associates) as a whole. The Acquisition was completed
in January 2013.

Save as disclosed above, no significant event took place subsequent to
31 December 2012.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of such non-
exempt continuing connected transactions are summarised below:

(A) PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR PLASTIC PIPE
MANUFACTURING
Background: On 20 December 2009, the Group entered

into a framework equipment purchase

agreement (the "“Framework Agreement”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery for the

three years commencing on 1 January 2010

and expiring on 31 December 2012.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
together with the total consideration for the
year ended 31 December 2012 are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:
Nature of transactions: Purchase of equipment for plastic pipe
manufacturing from Guangdong Liansu

Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB70 million

Total consideration for the year: RMB54 million
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B)

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited

On 27 April 2012, Guangdong Liansu
Technology (the “Lessee”) entered into
lease agreement (the “Lease”) with
Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the “Lessor")
whereby the Lessor leased its certain plants
erected on Lot GO03-2-1, Daba Industrial
Estate of Longjiang Community Residents’
Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, the PRC to the Group

for using as production facilities.

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the "Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 27
April 2012.

Particulars of the agreements together with
the total consideration for the year ended
31 December 2012 are disclosed below as
required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.
Reimbursement of utilities costs charged by

the relevant government authorities on the
Lessor from the Lessee.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B)

(C)

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration
for the year:

The Lease is for 32 months commencing on
1 May 2012 and expiring on 31 December
2014. The related rents payable by the
Lessee to the Lessor is RMB276,300 per
month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.

RMB2.2 million (Leasing agreement)

RMB8.5 million (Utilities agreement)

RMB2.2 million (Leasing agreement)
RMB5.6 million (Utilities agreement)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(i)  Purchase of Equipment for Plastic Pipe Manufacturing

Background:

Nature of

transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

On 31 December 2012, the Company
entered into a framework equipment
purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 1 year commencing from 1
January 2013 and ending on 31 December
2013. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
31 December 2012.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:

Purchase of equipment for plastic pipe
manufacturing from Guangdong Liansu
Machinery.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the

prevailing market price.

RMB97.5 million (for the year ending 31
December 2013)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(C) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
(ii) Purchase of Electronic Accessories

Background: On 31 December 2012, the Company
entered into the original design
manufacturing (the “ODM") co-operation
agreement with Guangdong Liansu
Electric in relation to the ODM production
co-operation as regards manufacturing
of electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group commencing
from 1 January 2013 and ending on 31
December 2013. For details, please
refer to the announcement made by the
Company on 31 December 2012.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Nature of Purchase of electronic accessories from
transactions: Guangdong Liansu Electric.
Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between

the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB30 million (for the year ending 31
December 2013)

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose
of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing
connected transactions and have confirmed that all continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company's auditor issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the transactions disclosed above in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy
of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company's securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the public float stipulated in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive

Shunde, the PRC, 18 March 2013
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To the shareholders of China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Liansu Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2012, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2012F12A318ILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

2012F 20114
2012 2011
FaE AR%T R ARETT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
KA REVENUE 5 10,891,363 10,143,296
SHER AR Cost of sales (8,242,055) (7,691,274)
el Gross profit 2,649,308 2,452,022
HAA ~ Wz R Fla Other revenue, income and gains 5 115,774 148,321
THE R HA AR Selling and distribution expenses (543,681) (453,596)
TBFHX Administrative expenses (381,037) (314,782)
Hinfis Other expenses (212,169) (164,467)
BRI A Finance costs 6 (146,231 (110,536)
DME—ELREHIE RGN Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly-controlled entity
(&18) 15 315 (29)
RRBLADEF PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 1,482,279 1,556,933
FrEfif X Income tax expense 9 (251,008) (296,237)
FEREF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,231,211 1,260,696
Hip2mEWE(B1E) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
A HERE Available-for-sale investments:
NEEEE) Changes in fair value 34,732 (20,022)
HEMSHZBERERE Reclassification adjustments for gains on disposal (14,7110) -
20,022 (20,022)
FEINESRREERES =5 Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (2191) (2,325)
FREMEZERE(EE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR 17,831 (22,347)
FRZEWEAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,249,102 1,238,349
AT F - Profit attributable to:
NATEB A Owners of the Company 1,238,322 1,260,758
JEp s Non-controlling interests (7,051) (62)
1,231,211 1,260,696
TG EE S 4EEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
KABIEE A Owners of the Company 1,255,835 1,238,411
FEE iR Non-controlling interests (6,733) (62)
1,249,102 1,238,349
AABDEEANELEREF EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 1
HA Basic AR#0MT ARHE0427T
RMB0.41 RMBO0.42
3 Diluted AR#0.407T AREMTT
RMB0.40 RMB0.41
FERRERSHDFBRENIBHREMTEI0 Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 10

to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2012912 831H
31 December 2012

20124 20114
2012 2011
FisE AR®T R ARET T
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

ME - BEREK Property, plant and equipment 12 3,288,261 2,470,759
BN LA ER Prepaid land lease payments 13 954,279 356,065
HitvmR EE Other intangible assets 9,M 2,799

BELH - V¥ BENM Deposits paid for the purchase of land, property,

BB AHRE plant and equipment 129,705 291,672
R HEE I B ERIRE Investment in a jointly-controlled entity 15 5,286 4971
BEZEHRE Held-to-maturity investments 16 279,006 -
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 17 = 156,508
EEFRIBEE Deferred tax assets 25 3575 2,112
FERBNEEBTE Total non-current assets 4,669,383 3,284,886
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
& Inventories 18 1,766,133 1,294,018
BHRWHIBERER Trade and bills receivables 19 1,009,534 748,358
BT e MEMERFIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 405,227 347,632
BEREIHEE Held-to-maturity investments 16 9,684 -
Be RFITER Cash and bank deposits 21 1,922,325 2,116,641
TENVEERTE Total current assets 5,112,903 4,506,649
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BHRNZELEE Trade and bills payables 2 512,054 191,314
HiENZIB R ETER Other payables and accruals 2 832,388 657,447
FITESRREAMIER Bank loans and other borrowings 2 595,799 70,004
TERFRIE Tax payable 98,635 114,426
NENBEERE Total current liabilities 2,038,876 1,033,191
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,074,021 3,473,458
EEATERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,743910 6,758,344
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RITERRHMEDR Bank loans and other borrowings 24 1,628,783 1,674,704
ELERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 25 64,635 72,673
EREW Deferred income 26 22514 23,602
e B EEsE Total non-current liabilities 1,715,992 1,770,979
BERE Net assets 6,027,918 4,987,365

¥ Annual Report 2012 55



Re BB )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

2012912 831H
31 December 2012

20124 20114
2012 201
FtsE AR¥T T ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i EQUITY
RAEIE AEIGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
BEITIRA Issued capital 27 132,660 131,537
[ Reserves 28(A) 5,877,373 4,855,438
6,010,033 4,986,975
JEP RS Non-controlling interests 17,885 390
R Total equity 6,027,918 4,987,365
HHEE BRI
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
2 EZE
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2012F12A318ILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

RATER AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARLE
REEf
e
BRE Available- B RE
BRfT f#E for-sale 1 FiErER
Bx  ROEE EEREY ERRERe Share  AGff%E  invesment  Exchange  REEF Non-  EHAR
Issued Share  Statutory Capital option Merger  revaluation  fluctuation  Retained @5 controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve® reserve? reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETR ARETE ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R01E1R18 At 1 January 2011 131,297 1,673,604 24420 31,645 35891 5515 - 290 1829159 4004451 - 4004451
EREF Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 1260758 1260758 (62 12606%
EREMZEESE Other comprehensive loss for the
year - - - - - - (20,022) (2329) - (2347) - (2347)
ER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income for the
year - - - - - - (20022) (235 1260758 1238411 (62) 1238349
Bk Issue of shares P 13,645 - - (5,169) - - - - 8716 - 8716
3 T Capital contribution from non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 45 45
BEONETER Additional listing expenses - (3,259) - - - - - - - (3,259) - (3259)
DIRELENBRER  Equity-settled share option
arrangements - - - - 41,682 - - - - 41682 - 41682
EAMEE NSRS Dividends recognised as distributions
(B3t10) to owners note 10) - - - - - - N 1 I 1] - s
ERTETRE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 138542 - - - - - (138542) -
RANERANBR At31 December 2011 and
NEIAIB 1January 2012 131537 1683990 412,962 31,645* 12404 5,515% (20022)* 0595 2648349 4986975 390 4,987,365
FREF Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 1238322 1238322 (1051) 1231
FREMZENE Other comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - - - 20,022 (2509) - 17513 318 17831
ER2EEEE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - - - 0022 (2509) 1238322 1,255,835 (6733 1,249,102
) Issue of shares 113 4,251 - - (24.369) - - - - 40805 - 10805
SRR LA Capital contribution from non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 2828 2428
IREEENERER S Equity-setied share option
arrangements - - - - 20252 - - - - 20252 - 20252
EPAEEADRARE  Dividends recognised as distribufions
(HizE10) to owners note 10) - - - - - - - - (e (238 - (e
ERTETRE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 133567 - - - - - (133567) - - -
AR At31 December 2012 132660 1748241* BA6E29* 31645+  GBOST*  B5I5* -+ 18086* 3459270 G100 17885 6027918
* ZEREROBGAMBRARPEERBEARE These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

5,877,373,000 7t (2011 & : A K # 4,855,438,000
L)

RMB5,877,373,000 (2011: RMB4,855,438,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

HE2012F12 831 A LFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

Wiz

REFEARE - ARRRFEEMOESRKBEAR
AEBRBETEAR G ERE TN FRRERTR
BN EMBRAEMBEFEERE)M10% 2EER
o BEERBELEREDEZMEARNG0% ML
EERBURNEEBEFRERIEE AT
BB T B TR DN EMEARMN25%

BB R AREIHE R RSN B RS
Wi FAEREE RNER

Notes:

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the Company's
subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE2012F12A831HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

20126 20114
2012 2011
FitsE AR¥TR ARBFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
ReETE) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRBLATR A - Profit before tax: 1,482,279 1,556,933
AT EEELRE Adjustments for:
lise Interest income 5 (52,516) (27,219)
BB ARBUTRE Government grants released (1,028) (1,425)
BEELEERNH = Gain on repurchase of the Senior Notes 5 (4,259) (24,662)
HEAHEERE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

FTi3 e investments 5 (14,110) -
% Bllhes Dividend income 5 (432) -
BERA Finance costs 6 146,231 110,536
e Depreciation 7 231,634 166,947
Taf AR E T i Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 7 1359 6,184
Hh 8 Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 1,346 774
HEME - BER Loss on disposal of items of property,

HEBHEEREE plant and equipment 7 120 642
ARG A M B A A S Equity-settled share option expense 7 20,252 41,682
BOFEENERFE Write-back of inventories to net realisable value 7 (488) (522)
2 SR B R ERE, Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade

CRE#E)F5E receivables, net 7 9,921 (1,222)
DME—RILEESIEEEEF),~  Share of (profit)/loss of a jointly-controlled

[ entity 15 (315) 29

1,837,629 1,828,677
FEEM Increase in inventories (463,165) (154,044)
B SR R E R Increase in trade and bills receivables (21,31) (65,721)
BER - Zek Increase in prepayments, deposits and
oA FEUGRIE IS b other receivables (20,942) (74,149)
B HENZBEREREN,(F4) Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 316,284 (51,446)
Hb eI R EET & RN Increase in other payables and accruals 137,338 128,972
KREEENES Cash generated from operations 1,535,773 1,612,289
2UERTTH B Bank interest received 34128 21,219
EAEREH Corporate income tax paid (289,457) (248,633)
RSB SIE e R Net cash flows from operating activities 1,280,444 1,390,875
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

HE2012F12A31HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

20126 0115
2012 2011
FtsE AR¥T T ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE  BENMKREEBR Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (1,067,866) (990,732)
REEEYE  BERBZEESR  Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant
FTissuE and equipment 10,230 2,629
B AR EFIE N Additions to prepaid land lease payments (408,733) (226,312)
ﬁ{)@ﬁﬁ,ﬁ?i‘ﬂu Additions to other intangible assets (8,318) (1,292)
A FEE I E 2R A Investment in a jointly-controlled entity - (5,000)
%“é” mm%&g Purchase of available-for-sale investments - (176,530)
HERH HEREMRFASEE  Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
FT{3 A investments, net of expenses 191,240 -
BEZFERIHEKE Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (285,250) -
DU E R R AR T 8 Interest received from held-to-maturity investments 6,656 -
2R E Dividends received 432 _
U BEHT B A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 30 (38,885) -
ZIREFRS(EM) FS (Increase)/decrease in restricted cash (333,453) 21,355
KERESFRR S RE R Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,933,947 (1,375,882)
AMEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
FERITER R EMmER New bank loans and other borrowings 662,165 2,189,763
BEIRTER Repayment of bank loans (109,390) (995,960)
BRELEE Repurchase of the Senior Notes (56,102) (173,163)
BRI IREZAMFTE5E  Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses 40,305 5,457
SEEHIRER T E Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 24,228 452
2AFLE Interest paid (141,964) (94,491)
ERRRE Dividends paid (293,834) (303,026)
METEMEREREFE Net cash flows from financing activities 125,908 629,032
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁ% NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
W) IR CASH EQUIVALENTS (527,595) 644,025
i%}]ﬁ’xﬁ‘%@&fﬁ EEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,114,952 1,500,292
GNEE [ R B B R 2R AR Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (174) (29,365)
FERORERBLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR 1,587,183 2,114,952
BeRESEBNNERIIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
B4 RiRTT4 Cash and bank balances 21 757,241 1,375,036
[RER={EH W ZIHARE AR Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months 21 829,936 739,916
21 1,587,183 2,114,952
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2012912 831H
31 December 2012

20124 20114
2012 2011
FizE AR%T R ARETT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RIBARIHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 14 2,639,340 2,193,197
i —fEM B R RIER Loans to a subsidiary 14 1,365,118 1,365,073
ERBEERTE Total non-current assets 4,004,458 3,558,270
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BNR - e REMEREE Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 3217 350
W —EH B A BFHUE Amounts due from a subsidiary 14 = 184,938
BE RIBITER Cash and bank deposits 21 57,509 16,651
TENVEERTE Total current assets 60,726 201,939
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HiENZIBRESTER Other payables and accruals 18,564 2,703
RITEF R EAMER Bank loans and other borrowings 24 291,906 -
RBAaEARE Total current liabilities 310,470 2,703
RE(BE) BERE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (249,744) 199,236
EEAERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,754,114 3,757,506
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
RITER R E A AR Bank loans and other borrowings 24 1,585,910 1,658,304
BEFE Net assets 2,168,804 2,099,202
R EQUITY
B3 TRAR Issued capital 27 132,660 131,537
B Reserves 28(B) 2,036,144 1,967,665
T R Total equity 2,168,804 2,099,202
HHE e
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
EZE EE
Director Director
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

2.1

62

DNRER

TEEE A -ERHESHEEEMKZNAR
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RERIABERFBD ©

AKAF A —EREIER AR o KA F)EZH
BRr RE LRI ERENFE D BIEN
FEIRERME14 15 ©

EERR - ARAANKKIERARATE
B HRNEBERREEEMKZMNAR

AR ¢
mAEE

HZERHRRORBEAB A GRS EM
BB REER ([ EEUBHHSER])
(BREMEEMBHRELER HEGHE
A([EBGFERDRRE) BEARE
FPEAR BB A RUADINKER EREL - %
SUBRRILELRAEBE - HRATE
SAEMNAHBLERERI - ZFHHEREKTD
UNARMEZS - BRAAERS - FAEEED
HEEREANTTH -

mEE%E

RENBREBEARARENBEAREZ
2012F 12 A3 HILFEMNEHHE - B
NEIMNIHHRE T BB AR RAE R MR & H
MEA—BNETECRRR - B ARIMNE
ERUEE R (AR EEUSEFIEE B )i
AOEARR - WHEBS G AREZZITHIER
LtEBAL FTAESREANRRIMER X
5 BEEEEEARRQRMRS 2 REEFIZ
KBRS EES HHIR B BB o

B B IRttt hIR B At AR - — IR
BARMEEKE K EERRIDEBNIEE
il o

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Liansu is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business are disclosed in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company's principal subsidiaries and its jointly-controlled
entity are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's ultimate holding
company is New Fortune, a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for available-for-sale investments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income and loss within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interests even if it results in a
deficit balance.

BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

22 EBERREEEEST 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
REFBRANEENLSAMBRENG NED The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
T REZT BB IRE 2L - first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.
HEMBmMEER  BEMBHREENE HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe
F1FIEFT AR BRI NG ESZER Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
REVH &R E 59 Dates for First-time Adopters
BlE A&
ERUKMELER BHEUWBKREELSE HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
FETRIEETAR VRN 3 —ﬁz\ﬁzf Transfers of Financial Assets
BBEETER BB GIERIFE 125 HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax:
F12AEFTA RIAEAEFEIE - 158 Recovery of Underlying Assets
BEZ e
BN RS s B BB TS RS Y B 5 4 The adoption of these revised HKFRSs has had no significant
BB HRRITEETE UG E - financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

23 EEMEMAEMPVEEBME 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

WEAER
FEBELSHHRRT HRIEREA TS
BB R AT T RS 3T B B RS

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

SRAEKER financial statements:
BRI EIREER B MR 2RI HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government
EALHESIEN SERTREFTE 2 Loans?
BEI RS &R BRI £ HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
EVEHEREN FIRIER A E— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
AHTHEERDH Liabilities?
f-¢
ERMHRERAESE LHTA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
RS EREN0S FRYBHER HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
BAEVBREZAE NG AT HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
BB RERRE12R BERAMERSER HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
BRI BHEEL BRI HREERE0 HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

F105% - BERBREE
AIENRRBERBRE

ERIE 1258 B 5T

BAMHHREEA

F10% - BEUBREE

¥ BAREHREE
BIBNSRRE BT
WEERE125R 8]
KBRS
BRI HRELERE0
5 BBBERE

HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)

and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment

AIE 12 REBEER EUFE 129 RES Amendments Entities®
F2IRQ0NF)NERTA  EIERIFE27H
(20ME)EETA
KL G
SRR A FEZHE HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement:

BEibE

N

i
BEGHEMERETA BEETENE1RE

HKAS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of

AIARMEE N E Items of Other Comprehensive Income'
B2Z3
EHeERE19% 1ES 57 HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits?
(20114%)
BEGERE27% BH BT HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements?
(2011%)
BB ERIE285 RBERTRA B DS HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
(20114%) ZIRE? Ventures?
BB QTER$32% EAESHER|EIRE HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Presentation —
BT FIRZ25 - Hige s Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
BEREHRE Liabilities?
&6 (AR REER ZEXESLEBENE HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
RELE) HK A a Surface Mine?
—RRBE20%
FEHZE2009-2011F 201296 ABMANES Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
yiil: B &S R ) %18 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 20122

fE5T2

ERAM201297 A1 H AR BG R F E R

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

1 1

2 HEAM201351 A1 A AR A8 /E B 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

3 EAMR201451 A1 B AK IR R FE HifE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

4 HEAM2015491 A1 B A A8 FE HAfE 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
64 BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

23 EEMEMAEMPVEEME 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

&R @)

BEMBRESENE1ORMABT LG E
QL2 RBT Y HHL D BRER
B 2 809 - TRERIRE S (BIFR B 7% i
ERBZEY) -REF12%45E —HHA
BRI HNREE - BEP B mEELE
0B A R ZHESR  EPEE=R
TLE () BREZEHIREHR - (b)E2EK
BHREEMGRZRRAAEIEN - R
(CBRENEREHREHRIBNTER
BEDHREHE - BEMBREENE105
NEMMAFRIESI RRBEMRNER - 815
KREHEARFELNBFERFEENERT
ZHIREHRNIER - BIEME - BERE
BERERE27REEE (AR H RS2
BZE®) -REF12RNRE  BEYB
HELF10RNERFTEETZIEHE -

BEEPBRELENENFRREEGTE
RISEI VRN A 2D F e BB (BRM
BERBZES) RESRHAFLENE
B-—EEENIHTIRA - BEMEHRELE
BIZE 1SRRI B M E s A £ A LA HE
ZHIEZ &L LRI IE o RIBEEN
BHRELUNENR  SERFEDRBMEA
BRELERAEER  WHKREEDEEL
Plira NIRRT = - BBMBRELER
ENHZOBEDHRBETRBELHETZ
BANEEEMEE - R - REFEGHE
AIE315E - A2 RO /B=ETRER :
HEEFIERE - KRIEHIEE R REZ
75 o

BEEYBREEFI10RLBIHERAE
E2013F 1 A1 ARBHFERRER - &
EEHRMNB BT EREERE10HRLE
EUEREEENRETEHAEETRYN
EENMBRABENERNTE -

EXEBHRAEMIT REET R AN TR
SEAK TG HAREENZE R B NE
RERFE

(Continued)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with the accounting
for consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the
issues raised in HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios
including cases where an investor may control an investee with
less than majority of voting rights. Overall, the application of
HKFRS 10 requires extensive use of judgement, compared with
the requirements in HKAS 27 and HK(SIC) — Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, there are two types
of joint arrangements: joint ventures and joint operations,
and removes the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation. The classification in HKFRS 11 is
based on parties’ rights and obligations under arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three different types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations.

HKFRS 10 and 11 are effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2013. The directors anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 11 will have no material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

The directors anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group's
results and financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 H31H
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group's investment in a jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is included
in profit or loss and reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investment in the jointly-controlled entity, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 FESTBERME @) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BB 22 SR EHE A PR A & China Liansu Group Holdings Limited

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

the person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

4.5% to 5%
9% to 19%
9.5% 10 32.3%

Land and buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 9.5% t0 32.3%
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial investments. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity investments which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as dividend income and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the other
comprehensive income, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in other comprehensive income — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and borrowings. The Group determines the classification of
its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, bank loans and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.
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POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the
fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis or other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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POLICIES (continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group’s employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in Asia
and North America. Payments to these plans, where the Group's
obligations under them are equivalent to a defined contribution
plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share option schemes

The Company adopted two share option schemes. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of options is recognised as an expense and credited to share
option reserve under equity. For grant of share options, the total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options at the date on which
they are granted by using a binomial model, excluding the impact
of any service condition and non-market vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to become vested.
From the perspective of the Company, the Company grants the
share options to its subsidiaries’ employees to exchange for
their services provided to the subsidiaries. Accordingly, in the
Company's statement of financial position, the equity-settled
share option expenses, which are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, are treated as part of the “investments in
subsidiaries”.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the Group’s statement of comprehensive
income and in the Company'’s “investments in subsidiaries”, and
makes a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period. When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share premium.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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POLICIES (continued)

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from
equity when they are declared and approved by the Company's
shareholders in general meetings. Interim dividends are deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved, and no longer
at the discretion of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is HK$ while the Company’s
presentation currency for the financial statements is RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC
are considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of
dividends, the deferred income tax charge and deferred income
tax liability would have been increased by the same amount of
approximately RMB 115,186,000 (2011: RMB45,276,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's provision policy for doubtful debts is based on
the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on the management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of the Group's customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required. As at 31
December 2012, impairment losses of RMB13,085,000 (2011:
RMB3,309,000) have been recognised for trade receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the aged analysis of the Group's
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for sale. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2012, no inventory was measured at net realisable
value (where lower than cost) (2011: RMB2,574,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings. For management purposes, the
Group's businesses are organised by geographical area based on
the location of the customers and assets are attributable to the
geographical unit based on the location of the assets. The Group
has eight reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

(b)  Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

(c)  Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

(d)  Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

(e)  Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

(f) Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province

and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

(@ Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(h)  Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that exchange differences, finance costs, gain on
disposal of available-for-sale investments, gain on repurchase
of the Senior Notes, interest income, share of result of a jointly-
controlled entity and other unallocated income and expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investment in a jointly-controlled entity,
held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale investments,
deferred tax assets, cash and bank deposits and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations both in the PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 118,563 25,155 36,253 12611 25061 14,488 1652 3919 - 1251
2SRl ERE Impairment of rade

BRTE receivables, et 9250 - i - - = = - - 9921
BEESZUEEEE Wit back of ventories tonet

realisable value 488) - - = = = - - - (488)
BRE Capital expendiure* 9594% min 13483 B 18667 194669 10335 118 (108) 155808
* EARIBERNEYE  BEMEE - BH * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
T EEREEMEREE - equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets.
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4. RBEDSIER @) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
BE20ME12A31BLEENKEE S HE OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR
& ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

e FEHE e B st [i5le:) RIHE HEES)
Southern  Southwester Central Eastem Northem ~ Northwestern  Northeaster Outside e At
China China China China China China China China ~ Eiminations  Consolidated
AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

AHYA: Seqment revenue:
NFRPHE Salesto external customers 6,852,183 915,905 832613 163153 581519 0% 176321 Ban - 10,1432
NEREEE Intersegment sales 886,056 17263 1885 1625 15316 14459 5,218 47855 (1,566,621 -
Bit Total 7738239 1,088,543 1,061,467 511,778 697435 JLUAL) 28545 141,7% (1,566,621) 10143296
PBEE Segment results 1913282 208,25 292762 80,534 12481 L) 39525 17,636 (260900) 2452012
i Reconciations:
T Fl% Exchange gain 52491
HENE Finance costs (11053)
BOEEZENOTE  Gainonrepurchaseof
the Senior Notes 24,662

FlEke Interest income 7.9
Ha—mRFES Shareoflossof ajointy-controlled

EEER entty (29)
ATMERRR Unallocated income and expenses (868,896)
BHaTE) Profitbefore tax 1556983
PUEE Segment assets 307839 409212 662,07 256941 4991 216408 354654 256,13 - 5511303
% Reconciliatons:
R-ELFESZEE  Ivestmentinajointy-controlled

fikE entty 4
L ERE Avalable-for-sale investments 156,508
EiiEEE Deferred tax assets 2n
BERFTER Cash and bank deposits 2116641
BE4R Total assefs 17915%
RtiAipEs Other seqment information;
TEREE Depreciation and amortisation 83678 17455 361 1042 1901 6,209 1251 225 - 1713905
ZHRUCTEREE  Reversal of mpaiment of rade

BEE receivables, net (1222) - - - - - - - - (1222)
BEEEEUEEHE  Write-back ofinventories tonet

realisable value - - - - (522) - - - - (522)
BRHR Capital expenditure* 47618 106,734 154736 4928 55,065 18334 138251 L) (16,024) 1,053,662
* BEAFZBEREWE  HWERSZE  BH * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
TGRSR EMEREE - equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets.
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5. WA~ EfblA ~ s R Rl

WATNAASEREXE  HRNFAREE
mHEREEFR - KHRERERE ST
(REINERIBER) -

REBEUA ~ EAUA ~ e R FIZER D

5.

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts (net of value-added tax) during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue, income and

Mo - gains is as follows:
2012F 0114
2012 2011
AR¥TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue

HEESD Sale of goods 10,891,363 10,143,296

HaplA ~ W R Flz= Other revenue, income and gains
SRITH B Bank interest income 34,128 21,219
BEZRIEEERNF Sz Interest income from held-to-maturity investments 18,388 -
GbsNGa Total interestincome 52,516 21219
BURREB) K FaRE Government grants and subsidies 25617 28,281
HEERMBRFI Gain on sale of raw materials 2,718 6,314
BEELERNHE Gain on repurchase of the Senior Notes 4,259 24,662
HEAHEERENEHE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 14,710 -
B B Dividend income 132 _
I 5 F &= Exchange gain - 52,491
Hith Others 15,462 9,354
115,774 148,321

T 8 B R AR B RAE BT B IR T A SZ
FASEETHZEPNES - WE(TE
ZERY R AR ARER RIS E S
e

Government grants and subsidies represented funding received
from government authorities to support certain of the Group’s
research and development activities. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies related to these grants and subsidies.
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6. RIERAK 6. FINANCE COSTS
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

AT EBHFE Interest on:

RITER Bank loans 10,299 17,175
BERER The Senior Notes 135,932 93,361
146,231 110,536

7. BRB AR

AL EORR B ADG R TR, (GEA) T3

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FBIRBE
2012F 20114
2012 2011
FaE AR¥T T ARETT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BEFERAK Cost of inventories sold 8,242,543 7,691,796
nE Depreciation 12 237,634 166,947
T T E R Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 13 13,594 6,184
Hi &= Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,346 774
e R# e Total depreciation and amortisation 252,574 173,905
3 Ak A * Research and development costs* 198,455 158,213
HEME - BEREBEER Loss on disposal of items of property,
KR plant and equipment 120 642
THREFEEHER Minimum lease payments under operating
=glivickn leases in respect of land and buildings 17,098 6,465
A G Auditors' remuneration 4,617 3,654
REEMEX (BIEESTMH Employee benefit expense (including
GESDE directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
TERH® Wages and salaries 346,178 242,975
AR B R B IR R Equity-settled share option expense 20,252 41,682
RIRE TR Pension scheme contributions 37,958 34,955
STRMEEMMASZ Staff welfare and other expenses 30,737 27,639
435125 347,251
BOFEZRa#IE%E Write-back of inventories to net
realisable value (488) (522)
B S EWFIEREREE, Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
ORfE[RI B ) F5E* trade receivables, net * 19 9,921 (1,222)
HelmFaE Net rental income (1,209) (1,060)
[N ZE 58 Foreign exchange differences, net 618 (52,491)
* EBERARE S RITORRERRE R ER * Research and development costs and the impairment/reversal of

EUFRIIR B N EFAL ] - impairment of trade receivables, net are included in “Other expenses”

in profit or loss.
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8. ExXFMrRIEESHFMES

(A) EEHH
RiE ETRAREBRBEGIE161
BIRENERNEEFMETIWT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2012F 20114

2012 2011

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB'000 RMB'000

e Fees 1,748 1,786
HAvsm Other emoluments:

e R REWER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,251 3,294

RIGENBTEA Performance related bonuses k74 325

DA E R IR 2 Equity-settled share option expense 367 7,154

RINEFTEIHR Pension scheme contributions 205 186

1,454 10,959

9,202 12,745

RBEFE  ETESFREARRE
PRt &) - SRS R AR E R AR
BREBEE SRR ENAFE
RETHEE  UNFEBHNERA
R MINARFERBEHRENOSER
BN EXESHMBENA -

In the prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the Company's
share option scheme. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. EEFMIrEEBERSHFM{ES 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

(%) HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(A) E=EFHM(E) (A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)
FEEREE2012F12A31HIESF The remuneration of each of the directors for the year
ERFNESNT - ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

DNg
e 28 ey
REWER RE BRERX Bike
Salaries,  HMATEA Equity- sHEIftS
allowances Performance settled Pension
&  and benefits related share option scheme 5t
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total

ARBTRE ARMTR ARMTR AR®MTRE AR®TT ARBT:R
RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMB'000

HITES ! Executive directors:

EHESTE Mr. Wong Luen Hei = 586 49 = 1 646

mtmi e Mr. Zuo Manlun - 585 49 736 2 1,391

S e Ms. Zuo Xiaoping - 586 49 442 1 1,088

REE A Mr. Lai Zhigiang - 300 2% 442 2 799

HkmakE Mr. Kong Zhaocong - 300 2% 442 2 799

BRI LA Mr. Chen Guonan - 300 25 369 32 126

wh2EL Dr. Lin Shaoquan = 300 2% 369 8 702

BEKREE Mr. Huang Guirong - 300 25 369 47 ™

EEESE Mr. Luo Jianfeng 586 - 49 369 1 1,015
586 3,251 N 3538 205 1,907

FEHITEZ:  Non-executive director:

WEEELE  Mr.LinDewei 370 - - 133 - 503

BT Independent non-executive

- directors:

AEREL Dr. Bai Chongen 264 - - - - 264

SEERE Mr. Fung Pui Cheung 264 = = = = 264

TEHREE Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan 264 - - - - 264

RXFHAN M. Cheung Man Yut = = = = = =

SN HEEN  Mr. Gao Lixin® - - _ _ _ _
192 - - - - 192

1,748 3,251 N 367 205 9,202
Btat: Note:
1. M20126F12 A31 BEZ T AB L IEH 1. Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 31
1TEF - December 2012.
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()

8. EEFMREEBESHM{ES 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(A) E=EFHM(E) (A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
ZEEREZE201MF12A31HIERF The remuneration of each of the directors for the year
EEEENES AT ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:

AR #E
e o 28 7#ER
REMET FH BRERZ BiE
Salaries,  HMATEAL Equity-  =HEIftsE
allowances  Performance settled Pension
%  and benefits related  share option scheme wst
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES: Executive directors:
ERERE Mr. Wong Luen Hei - 598 50 - 10 658
OmieE  Mr.ZuoManlun - 598 50 1434 10 2,092
S e Ms. Zuo Xiaoping - 598 50 862 10 1520
BEEE M LaiZhigiang - 300 % 862 31 1218
HkEakE Mr. Kong Zhaocong - 300 2% 862 31 1,218
FEER L4 Mr. Chen Guonan - 300 25 719 31 1,075
mOEEL Dr. Lin Shaoquan - 300 2% 79 7 1,01
EES%E  Mr.Huang Guirong - 300 % 79 4 1,090
BRIELAE M. Luo Jianfeng 598 - 50 79 10 1377
598 3,294 325 6,896 186 11,299
FEHITEZ:  Non-executive director:
WEEEE  Mrlin Dewei 378 - - 258 - 636
B EHIT Independent non-executive
- directors:
AEREL Dr. Bai Chongen 20 - - - - 200
SEERE Mr. Fung Pui Cheung 20 - - - - 270
TEHERTE Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan 270 - - - - 270
810 - - - - 810
1,786 3,29 325 1154 186 12,745

MESFERRIATHETAMNSE -
A E TR RSB NE A EE R E
MBEAEEE S E AR ET R E
EXEABE

FRREC T KEN FBILIERTE
EMEAEMBE (20114 « &) -

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year (2011:
Nil).
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8. EE¥FMEIERRSHFMES 8.

(%)

(B) ITEREHMES
R ARBERERSFMEESOR
BEF - RFANRFTEEFNMEFBEH

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these

A EXXBIEES(A) © directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.
9. FIBHiEEX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

20124 20114

2012 2011

AR¥T T AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BIH— &% Current —Hong Kong 2,484 -
BIEA— B Current—PRC

FRFIE Charge for the year 286,462 276,989

BAFTEBEREE Overprovision in prior years (28,437) (8,830)

260,509 268,159

R (Fft3E25) Deferred (note 25) (9,501) 28,078

FABIIHBEE Total tax charge for the year 251,008 296,237

REBARAEBR B RRIRN T G NS EHR
ERRDERERMELE RIS EMIREREA
EHMPAISHH -

EHBFEH
EEFERIBIEFENERBEENGHET
JERBURE AR S ARI TR B RS 1878 - AT R
16.5% Bt o

ENAEER EFAYBATBEL(EMRE
RBEN - A BN EFRBENEHE
=

PESZERES
REBEFFBEANEBHASHREDRE
HZE20128 %2011F12A31B It FERE
RBEA - IAENIRGE AR - RERIEN
BEME - IREATENE -

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year after offsetting the tax loss brought forward.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made in prior year
as the Group had not generated any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during that year.

PRC CIT

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates
on the taxable profits for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
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9. FRBHIRE X ) 9.

RAARRBREBONERREDEERE
TR ET B R0 E AR T AT M B THIRF 2
BIR BB R ER IR OHRNT

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of
the Company's subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate is as follows:

20126 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR Profit before tax 1,482,279 1,556,933
BB EASH 5%t T8 Tax atthe PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% 370,570 389,233
ETHBARNMBEENTE Effect of tax concessions for certain subsidiaries (146,600) (152,900)
DIE—THEEEHIFE(REH),/  Share of (profit)/loss of a jointly-controlled entity
18 (19) 7
BRRBIE Income not subject to tax (6,402) (17,808)
AR Expenses not deductible for tax 32,058 16,008
BB FERESE Tax losses utilised from prior years (858) -
RIERTIBER Tax losses not recognised 16,205 29,726
B FE FERBIEL AR Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years (28,437) (8,830)
HARRBREMER T 9K Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable
ERES%HUTBIZFTSTMEZ  profits of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC 14,551 40,801
BAREEERHERAEMNHIELE  Tax charge atthe Group's effective rate 251,008 296,237
10. K2 10. DIVIDENDS
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERERDRORE Dividends recognised as distributions during the year:
WNERBRE — BRLBR 2011 final - HK12 cents (2011: 2010 final - HK12 cents)
127801 (20114F : 2010F REARE perordinary share
—127%4l) 293,834 303,026

EEEEMEE2012F12831 B IEFEIR
AR BT @AY 27810 (20114F - &
FE201MF12ANBIEFENRBRETRE
A1 2780 - MBI S AR R A
FRE LIEER - IR -

The final dividend of HK12 cents in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: final dividend of HK12 cents in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2011) per ordinary share has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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1. AREHEEAELBRER

BRBEATSEFESREAREERF

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

20126 20114
2012 201
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
2R Earnings
TEEREARNEERFREREA  Profitattributable to owners of the Company used in the
AT AEIE SR basic and diluted earnings per share calculation 1,238,322 1,260,758
R EE
Number of Shares
2012F 20114
2012 201
i) Shares
SHETRERET SR8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the
RARDBITL @A IE Company in issue used in the basic earnings
T8 per share calculation 3,011,875,112 3,002,907,794
BEEWE — SRR ET S Effect of dilution — weighted average number of
AR E ordinary shares: share options 57,300,281 73,937,711
3,069,175,393 3,076,845,505

FAUEGTEHEHE2012F12A31HIEFER
FRERBFORMDMETF9E - 2ER
2011412 A31 H 2 # 17 #93,005,906,950
BE@AZ (20114 : B2010F12A31HE
%17 #93,000,000,000 % & 7 I% ) K2 1718 B8
% #E 1% 25 77 9 27,695,400 A% % @ A% (2011
F 1 5,906,950% & imA%) By NEF I8 - B
5,968,1620% (20114F : 2,907,7948%) B -

BREERNEERIDRIBARRHE ARG
FRENEE - SHEMT RS REIIE T
BRFAERRITHTAREE (B ESK
EXRBMAEERR) - RREABEEE
SBERRRRETERERRERRMUAT

REFITEBINE TR -

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 includes 3,005,906,950 ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2011 (2011: 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 December 2010) and 5,968,162 shares (2011: 2,907,794
shares) derived from the weighted average of 27,695,400
ordinary shares (2011: 5,906,950 ordinary shares) issued upon
exercise of the share options.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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12. Y% - MERRE 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ELCN
RER
BWAERE
Furniture, HE HEIR
THREF BEREES fixtures BE  WEEE  Construction
landand  Plantand  and office Motor Leasehold in st
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
ARBTR AR®TT AR%Tn ARETR AR¥TR AR®TR AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA Cost:
RANEF1 1R At1January 2011 680,240 986,073 29,022 65,373 3179 251,126 2,021,613
NE Additions 57412 361,089 12,885 17,588 43 486,428 935,705
AR Transfers 101,439 114313 - - - (215,752) -
HeE Disposals (587) (1,547) (2,203) (633) - - (4.970)
i 5 R Exchange realignment (4n) - (3) (340) - - (814)
FRONEI2ANAL  At31 December 2011 and
012F1 A1H 1 January 2012 838,093 1,459,928 39,701 81,988 3422 528,402 2,951,534
NE Additions 72,642 297,81 14,146 21,106 3,486 598,407 1,007,598
UEEHIB A R (F3E30)  Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 30) 54,109 1072 163 530 - 2319 58,193
i Transfers 264,992 193,693 250 695 - (459,630) -
HeE Disposals (224) (11,740) (1113) (3) - - (13,190)
[ B Exchange realignment (10) (215) 2) (1) (3) (440) (671)
RNZENANE At31 December 2012 120602 1940549 53085 104265 6905 669058 4003464
e Accumulated depreciation:
RAONEIAIA At1January 2011 (73,445) (199,139) (11,101) (31,027) (983) - (315,695)
REEIRE Provided for the year (33,646) (115,310) (5,496) (10,687) (1,808) - (166,947)
HE Disposals 179 74 578 168 - - 1,699
i 5 5 Exchange realignment 15 - - 153 - - 168
PONENRANEK  At31December 2011 and
01261 A1H 1 January 2012 (106,897) (313,675) (16,019) (41,393) (2191) - (480,775)
REEIRE Provided for the year (51,784) (163,516) (1382) (14,150) (802) - (237,634)
HE Disposals 108 2188 519 2 - - 2,840
[ i % Exchange realignment 3 358 - 5 - - 366
R2E12A31H At31 December 2012 (158570) (474645  (288)  (5513) (3593) - (M5
RERE: Net carrying amount:
R012E12831H At 31 December 2012 101,032 1,465,904 30,203 48,752 3312 669,058 3,288,261
RANE12A31E At 31 December 2011 131,19 1,146,253 23,682 40,5% 631 528,402 2,470,759

R2011F12H31H - AEEKREFERRE
AR #129,561,0007TH & THEF MEEE
EIFEAEEIRTTERER -

As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group's buildings
and machinery with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB129,561,000 were pledged to secure the Group's bank
loans.

o7

R Annual Report 2012



IR R M5 ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 A31H
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13. LA ER

13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

2012F 20114

2012 2011

FizE ARETRT ARBFT

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

MAH At1 January 364,162 253,661

NE Additions 592,976 116,685

WHEHIE A7) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 30 31,399 -

RENTER Recognised during the year 7 (13,594) (6,184)

P12A31BRIERE(E Carrying amount at 31 December 974,943 364,162
STATER - e R EM Current portion included in prepayments,

FEWGRIER) REN 2 deposits and other receivables 20 (20,664) (8,097)

FEMEIE D Non-current portion 954,279 356,065

HE AR BAM - T AR BE &S
A

HR2011912A831H @ AEBERE FEERE
AR¥26,914,0007tH) 35 F T8 LA &5
EEIFEREERITEROER -

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under a medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group's prepaid land
lease payments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB26,914,000 were pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans.

14. ARFBATINKRERENEZS 14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
A4 R BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
JEEMRR - AR Unlisted shares, at cost - _
BLNENGETE S Advances to subsidiaries 2,561,482 2,131,878
R AEWEEEHHATE  Capital contribution in respect of employee share-based
compensation 71,858 61,319
2,639,340 2,193,197
A LR B A BRI B P B A R E K The advances to subsidiaries of RMB2,561,482,000 (2011:
B AR #2,561,482,0007T (20116 « AR RMB2,131,878,000) included in the investments in subsidiaries
#2,131,878,0007T) AEEKE - 4B LEE above are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
TERFER - repayment.
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2012412 A31H
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14. RBAANKRERENBEL 14

AlEEER @)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

m—REHEARERAR1,365,118,000
JC(20114F + AR#1,365,073,0007T) A4
HH - mPBEARBITAMAERNERE
FEREIF0.81% 515 BHN20165FEE ©

B2011F12A831H » st AKXR AR B
EENEW-—HBHBERARREARE
184,938,000 T & E I « IHEREE © K

The loans to a subsidiary of RMB1,365,118,000 (2011:
RMB1,365,073,000) are unsecured, bearing interest at 0.81%
below the applicable benchmark lending rates announced by the
People's Bank of China and are repayable in 2016.

As at 31 December 2011, the amounts due from a subsidiary
included in the Company's current assets of RMB184,938,000
were unsecured, repayable on demand and bore interest at

AR #2,566,0007T% A - HEEFIBE

5.75% KB EFFIKEHE ©

TEMBARRFENT

a fixed rate of 5.75% per annum except for the amount of
RMB2,556,000 which was interest-free.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MR
AR BRITLER R LR
K2 EfRAEE B Lk
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ equity attributable
E=41 registration registered to the Company FEEWR
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERFREERBRAT HBER RS (Es 100% - REER
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 Investment holding
ENERERERAR] HBER RS (Es 100% - REER
Great China International Holdings Ltd. BVI USs$1 Investment holding
TR E AR AT HBER RS 17T 100% - REER
China Liansu Investment Limited BVI USs$1 Investment holding
TR ERAR AT HBER RS 17T 100% - REER
China Liansu Development Limited BVI USs$1 Investment holding
BEEERRAR BB 13,000,000/ 7T - 100% IRERRITHELR
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 EEREN
Investment holding
and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings
BRI EXERAR* a3 1,903,760,0007%5 7T - 100% SLERIHELR
Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial ~ PRC HK$1,903,760,000 BEREH

Co., Ltd.*

Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
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2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

14. RBAANKRERENBEL 14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

G730 8 BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
AR,
AR BRITEER AN AR R L
e 2 AR AEE HiE L3
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ equity attributable
=51 registration registered to the Company FTEEK
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BILBEZERERBRAR 23 269,930,000 7T - 100% SLERIHELH
Heshan Liansu Industrial Development PRC HK$269,930,000 EENEHE
Co., Ltd.** Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
AR R (FUZ) B R AR f 111,000,000 7T - 100% SLERIHELH
Liansu Technology Development (Wuhan) ~ PRC HK$111,000,000 EENEHE
Co., Ltd.** Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
SRR ER(ER)BRAR 23 115,000,000 7 - 100% SLERIHELH
Liansu Technology Development (Guiyang) ~ PRC HK$115,000,000 EENEHE
Co., Ltd.** Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
BRI EERR AR f 26,750,00035 7T - 100% SUERHEEH
Nanjing Liansu Technology Industrial PRC US$26,750,000 BEREH
Co., Ltd.** Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
s EE ) BRAFL * i 27,790,000 7T - 100% SLERIHELR
Liansu Municipal Pipe (Hebei) Co., Ltd.** PRC US$27,790,000 EENEHE
Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
A EEBRAR 23 AR #200,000,0007T - 100% SLERIHELH
Henan Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.# PRC RMB200,000,000 EENEHE
Manufacture and
sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings
* REPEEEAMA I EBERE - * Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the
PRC.

> REBEFEEEZEMAAEARE -
# RiFPEEFEEMA—MARAT -

*x Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of the PRC.
# Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC.
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31 December 2012

14. ARBATIMNIKRERENELA 14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
TEEES ) BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EE2RA EREENAND FIMNB A T The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
REEMEEEERTE NN EKNERE opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
EFEMEANIS - EFREMEEHE MM year or formed a substantial portion of the Group's net assets.
BARIMER - BEeEE@EERBRIE - To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

15. R—EREEHERBHNRE 15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITY
20126 20114
2012 2011
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
DIEEFE Share of net assets 5,286 4971
HEESFENEBOT - Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

FritED

Percentage of
EfEAR s EEARES RERE PEALE R TEEK
28 Registered Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital registration interest power sharing activity
ERB R Y BRHE R A AR #10,000,0007C i 50 50 50  REREES
SR BRAR RMB10,000,000 PRC Rt RIEIR
Guangdong Liansu EPCO Provision of
Residential Equipment household
Design Services Co., Ltd. decoration

design work and
maintenance
services
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2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

15. R—EHEEHERNRE @

TREJNAEERN KRS B REESNITE

15.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITY (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

BN information of the Group's interest in the jointly-controlled entity:
20126 20114
2012 201
ARETR ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
DMEHEIEHEREERAE Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s assets and liabilities:
FERBEE Non-current assets 143 _
MBNEE Current assets 5,269 4,975
nEaE Current liabilities (126) 4)
BEFE Net assets 5,286 4971
DIEERIEFIEEES - Share of the jointly-controlled entity's results:
WA Income 928 1
X Expenses (504) (30)
FTefiFx Income tax expense (109) _
FmA,/ (EER) Profit/(loss) for the year 315 (29)
16. HFEZFHMKRE 16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
2012F 20114
2012 2011
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEERES Listed debt securities 268,690 -
W OREEER N EEA D Less: Amounts with maturity of less than one year shown
—EM A under current assets (9,684) -
FERENVEEIR THA Amounts shown under non-current assets 219,006 -
%ﬁ R HIRE ABRFTINEE SR STA R The held-to-maturity investments represented debt securities
NRETMERSES - ZEHFFNFSIEE listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
FEERMEI 0% E13.75% 15 » FHEX These securities carry fixed interest at 9.00% to 13.75% per

£+ #5722013F11 B E£20164F4 5 5] -

R2012F 128318 @ IREZERBLT &
BERMEEEIRENTISRE - ZSEKE
AEH N FE A ARKE316,582,0007T ©

annum, payable semi-annually in arrears, and will mature from
November 2013 to April 2016.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the debt securities
based on the quoted market price provided by a leading global
financial market data provider was RMB316,582,000.
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17. AHHEKRE 17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20125 20114

2012 2011

AR¥ETRT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NES FTHRERE - IRAF(E  Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, at fair value - 156,508
N EREBREEEEAHEESREEN The above investments consisted of investments in equity
IEREEHFIILE - RFA - AEBURESR securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
B4 ARE191,430,000c HEFREZF assets. All these investments were disposed of at a cash
& o consideration of approximately RMB191,430,000 during the year.

18. FE 18. INVENTORIES

2012F 20114

2012 2011

ARETR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B Raw materials 885,211 639,363

EER Work in progress 78,784 48,691

BT Finished goods 802,138 605,964

1,766,133 1,294,018
2012912 A31H - AEBEREFELTE As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's inventories with
BAR#26,332,0007C (20114 : )& an aggregate net carrying amount of RMB26,332,000 (2011: Nil)

FHREEEPERASERITERBER - were pledged to secure the Group's bank loans.
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19. EZRRHRERERE 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2012F 20114

2012 2011

AR®TR ARBFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Z S EIE Trade receivables 779,354 718,856
e Bills receivable 243,265 32811
B RERME Less: Provision for impairment (13,085) (3,309)
1,009,534 748,358

AEENTEREFP /T EAMANE LD H
B EIARTIRAER  BHERER - A8
EXERNFRTHAP - AEERFTR - T
SRR BE PG - A HEET
HEANE S FERBRAENT A EEE RS
T—R-—EAXZEANERH(EE) -
AREEIWBA—RED HEE PR TIRERN
ERHER - ERIBEDHEEPHERYRE
ERIERTE - WHEHES R 5IR(nE
B B/RE  HREHEPHEE R
FERUBEMNT AR R EREMAKE - K
SEYER/NMRE - SR EHEPRUER
HARR -

B RUGTA MBS REERL RS -

R|REHR - NEENE ZRUFERER
RERAMYINRBEHROREROTOT

The Group’s major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in Mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the customers,
the Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by-
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate.
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally
expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly
after the goods delivery. No credit period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

2012F 20114

2012 2011

ARETRT ARBFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

EARA Within 3 months 632,975 580,613
42618 A 40 6 months 179,554 98,441
121208A 7t0 12 months 159,689 40,722
1226 1to2years 33,724 26,431
223F 2to0 3years 2,705 2,049
IEM Over 3 years 887 102
1,009,534 748,358
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19.

E A E Y EL AT D 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (cContinued)
REEZ G EWZBERERENZE N The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group's
T~ trade receivables are as follows:
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1A1HE At 1 January 3,309 4,531
EHER/(BBE)FMEEE(M7) Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) (note 7) 9921 (1,222)
HWsE AT E R 258 Amounts written off as uncollectible (145) -
M2A31H At 31 December 13,085 3,309
P2012F 12 AT EBW Lt BEARE The above provision of RMB13,085,000 (2011: RMB3,309,000)
13,085,0007% (20114 = AR #3,309,000 as at 31 December 2012 is for individually impaired trade
TC) BB 2 AR EE A A R 13,085,000 receivables with their carrying amount before provision of
TL(20114F © AR¥E3,309,0007T ) KR A1 RMB13,085,000 (2011: RMB3,309,000). The individually impaired
BE ZEWFIEEL - ERREER 2 EREK trade receivables relate to customers that were in default or
HEEXHSEXNRNELEE - delinquency in payments.
AEBERRKERFEHTRAEREES The aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables that
FEWHIE R EBRMORESTAOT are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:
20126 20114
2012 2011
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEMARE Neither past due nor impaired 820,456 559,037
B@HEMARE Past due but not impaired:
BHI D R3E A Less than 3 months past due 131,291 141,545
EEAAZ6(E A 40 6 months past due 17,652 15,834
WERTE12(8 A 7to 12 months past due 21528 2,714
BEN 2 1to 2 years past due 1751 9,123
BHRE3F 2to 3 years past due 1,036 105
1,009,534 748,358
KRB ENERFEERZTREF Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
B ELRPIIHABEE/ L - large number of diversified customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.
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19.

20.

B EWRRERERE @) 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
B A E AR E R FENGR BB S T Y B P Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
B REERNEBRNZFHDERIT o IBIF number of independent customers that have a good track record
BELER  EE2R2A ARRSEPEEYS with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors believe
=ZWEBEE(L - BERDE AR BREUR that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
B - B EARZSERIELRERE - balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
FR - ANEHM-KPITAIREEAEAA During the year, the Group discounted bills receivable with an
R#152,084,000 T ENEE » TRE TS aggregate carrying amount of RMB152,084,000 to a bank for
IE A AR#148,738,0007T © Mz S FE L cash proceeds of RMB148,738,000. If the bills receivable are not
EENEIEAA SRS - SRITERESK A E paid at maturity, the bank has the right to request the Group to
B MAREREREE - AN ANEEW EEES pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred the
FAZERINEENTIERM RER(BEIEE significant risks and rewards, including default risk, relating to
HRER) AEBEESHEREREZERN such bills receivable, it continues to recognise the full carrying
BREE - YEHRRZE RN NIRE AE amount of the bills receivable and has recognised the cash
EIRRITE K © received on the transfer as an unsecured bank loan.
PERE IR - B R AR ERERR ) FE U At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of the
EREEDEREBAENRERESIAAR bills receivable that have been transferred but have not been
#152,084,0007T ° derecognised and the carrying amount of the associated liability
amounted to RMB152,084,000, respectively.
AaFE - e HMEWSIE 20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
2012 20114
2012 2011
FaE AR¥T T ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
TBRER Prepayments 231,262 273,385
B HEERNREE S Current portion of prepaid land lease payments 13 20,664 8,097
IR ER Value-added tax recoverable 109,581 52,245
I EFTER Corporate income tax recoverable 13,157 -
b Deposits 10,953 9,413
H AW RIE Other receivables 19,610 4,492
405,227 347,632

biigSeEENeREET BN - 28R

The financial assets included in the above balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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21. BERBITER

21. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

KEE
Group
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR%T R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RekBReEEY ! Cash and cash equivalents:
e RRITES Cash and bank balances 757,247 1,375,036
FHER Time deposits 829,936 739,916
1,587,183 2,114,952
XBRHES Restricted cash:
EBBHRENERES Guarantee deposits as performance bonds = 450
ERIRITRENERZS Guarantee deposits for banking facilities 335,142 1,239
335,142 1,689
Be RIRITER Cash and bank deposits 1,922,325 2,116,641
AAREEEHED Denominated in RMBM 1,834,254 2,079,069
AE M S ¥ HE Denominated in other currencies 88,071 371,572
1,922,325 2,116,641
AAF
Company
20126 20114
2012 2011
AR®T R ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
B RIRITHERS Cash and bank balances 10,602 16,651
T BfF R Time deposits 46,907 -
Be RIRTTER Cash and bank deposits 57,509 16,651
IAAREEEHED Denominated in RMB 9,276 14,981
PAE M S ¥ HE Denominated in other currencies 48,233 1,670
57,509 16,651
HiaE - Notes:

ARBTAERABRAEMEYR - AW - R
5 B A SN E E IR AR B R ASRE B R
EEERT  AREREEBEREETI
EXBNRITHARBLBBEMES -

FRPIRITHR SRS ARITERF ENZ
B RERERFIE o 52 HIE B AR IR 1
RE3ME AT E IR E 5 BT H17 50 R BRER
B o RITHEHRRZRGIR ST R E
B AEERIFAIRT

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods
between one day and three months and earn interest at the respective
short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted cash
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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22 ESENRERERE 22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
B FENHIE Trade payables 375,488 179,397
ISRES: Bills payable 136,566 11,917
512,054 191,314
BHRENRENRE - BHERENTHER The trade payables are interest-free. The average credit period
HiA30290H - for trade purchases is 30 to 90 days.
RBEHR - XEENE S ENKIBREE An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at
REZHERNERRS AT the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EAR Within 3 months 483,943 188,436
47618 A 4o 6 months 23520 860
121208 R 7t0 12 months 1,542 1,306
1226 1to 2 years 2,562 517
2E3F 2to 3years 299 21
3EM Over 3 years 188 174
512,054 191,314
23. HittENREREFEHA 23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2012 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BEHZ Advances from customers 487,192 289,735
[EFTER Accruals 34,688 24,707
R TEREF Salaries and welfare payables 76,926 57,042
HAth TR Other payables 233,582 285,963
832,388 657,447
LiiEsmeEnemas e B NERTE The financial liabilities included in the above balances are interest-
SRER o free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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24. RITERRHMERRK

24. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2125 MF
2012 2011
BERFI= BERA=
Effective ZHH Effective 28R
interest rate Maturity interest rate Maturity
AR%ETR AREFT
FEE Group (%) RMB'000 (%) RMB'000
e Current
FHEMRTER Secured bank loans 1.33-240 2013 26,332 290540 2012 70,004
ERBRITER Unsecured bank loans 243-550 2013 569,467 -
595,799 70,004
FERa Non-current
BERRITES Secured bank loans - 5.40 2013 16,400
ERRITER Unsecured bank loans 2N 2015 12813 -
BEER The Senior Notes 8.63 2016 1,585,910 8.63 2016 1,658,304
1,628,783 1,674,704
2,224,582 1,744,708
20126 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JBEBHRITE Analysed into bank loans repayable:
—FRNE N Within one year or on demand 595,799 70,004
EFR Inthe second year 21,437 16,400
FFEFRFN(RIEEEMT) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 21,436 -
638,672 86,404
BEBEMER - Analysed into other borrowings repayable:
EF=FEERFAN(REEEMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,585,910 1,658,304
2,224,582 1,744,708
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24. SRITERREMER @

24. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

212%F IES
2012 20M
L EES ERFIE
Effective )= Effective ZEA
interest rate Maturity interest rate Maturity
ARBT R ARETT
LA Company (%) RMB'000 (%) RMB'000
ik Current
BIKRFITER Unsecured bank loans 243 2013 291,906 -
FRa Non-current
BAZER The Senior Notes 8.63 2016 1,585,910 8.63 2016 1,658,304
1,871,816 1,658,304
20126 0115
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEEBRITER Analysed into bank loans repayable:
—FE RPN E K Within one year or on demand 291,906 -
BlEEBEMET Analysed into other borrowings repayable:
FoFEFERFN(REEEMT) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,585,910 1,658,304
1,871,816 1,658,304
et - Notes:

2012512 A31H » "EBUETL - BT
RARBGHENRITEREES A AARK
194,682,0007T (20114 = A R # 6,004,000
7o)+ AR # 291,906,000 (2011 4F : £ )
T AR 152,084,000 7T (2011 6 © AR#
80,400,0007T) °

2012912318 - BIEFRITEFALRSE
HIEEFE L5 A A RH26,332,0007T (2011
F - ENTFEERE -

M20114612A318 - BEFRITEFALRE
E R FEA%E A AR 129,561,000 H)
ETEFRERULEMFELCEAARK
26,914,0007cHY %5 18 LA E R VEH IR -

1. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's bank loans are denominated
in US$, HK$ and RMB at aggregate amounts of RMB194,682,000
(2011: RMB6,004,000), RMB291,906,000 (2011: Nil) and
RMB152,084,000 (2011: RMB80,400,000), respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the secured bank loans are secured by
the Group's inventories with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB26,332,000 (2011: Nil).

As at 31 December 2011, the secured bank loans were secured by
certain of the Group’s buildings and machinery with an aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB129,561,000 and certain prepaid land lease
payments with an aggregate net carrying amount of RMB26,914,000.
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24. RITEFREMERT @ 24. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

Hiat - (48) Notes: (Continued)

2. BAZEBERFTNEBLRIFHMARRA L
W FBIREFER7875%+E - WiN5A13
BR11A1IBEEFFLN - BRIERAER -
BAREEN2016FE5H13HE|H - KA AR
BITEERI BN EAESEEEEE S

BRI 2RI ELRE -

BRRBEHAREE THEBRRRELIAZ
ERMRBENMBRRNEN RE —EXE
SEFRIR

RER ARAREBRTHASRBREL
9,820,000 % 7T ( 2011 4 : 31,300,000 %
TTOMEBEAEE  REZAERFZARE
4,259,000 7T (20114 : A R # 24,662,000
JL) ° FR2012412A31H  BEZEME
{& 38 X 4 %8 /2 258,880,000 5 7T (2011 4F :
268,700,0003%7T) °

2012412 A318 » IRIEZRBEMEH
SERBEERENTISRE  BAZEN
A {H 4270,530,000 T (W ER AR
1,706,766,000 7% ) (20114 : 227,723,000
TL(KIE M AR #1,434,860,0007T) ) ©

The Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. They carry interest at 7.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears on 13 May and 13 November, and will mature
on 13 May 2016 unless redeemed earlier. The Company can at its
option redeem all or a portion of the Senior Notes at any time prior to
the maturity date in accordance with the purchase agreement.

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries and secured by a first-priority fixed charge over the shares
of those subsidiaries providing such guarantee.

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled the
Senior Notes in aggregate principal amount of US$9,820,000 (2011:
US$31,300,000) with a gain of RMB4,259,000 (2011: RMB24,662,000)
recognised in profit or loss. The outstanding principal amount of the
Senior Notes was US$258,880,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
US$268,700,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Senior Notes based on
the quoted market price provided by a leading global financial market
data provider was US$270,530,000 (approximately RMB1,706,766,000
equivalent) (2011: US$227,723,000 (approximately RMB1,434,860,000
equivalent)).
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25. EAERIA 25. DEFERRED TAX
UTARFRAEERNEZRERBEE, The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
(BE)REE recognised and their movements during the year:

HE
s WA
WEAR Tk
BHAYE Pl
#E BRASH
Fairvalue  Withholding
BEM adjustments tax on B
HERE MEBENE  arsingfrom  distributable TR
Provisionfor  Accelerated acquisition profits of Deferred
impairment tax ofa  subsidiaries  government @t
ofassets  depreciation subsidiary in the PRC grants Total
ARETT ARETT ARETz ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RONE1A1E A1 January 2011 694 - (3495) (41.289) 1601 (82483)
(8)/FHAFE (Charged)/credited to the profit or loss for
B#(F) the year note 9) (183) - 105 (28,000]* - (28,078
RONE1ANAR At31 December 2011 and
NZEIAIR 1 January 2012 511 - (3.390) (69283) 1601 (70,561)
A/ (85 Credited/(charged) to the profit or loss for
B#(H) the year note 9) 1243 284 8 7949% (64 9501
RanE12831A At31 December 2012 1,754 2 (3301) (61.334) 1537 (61,060)

* 2012912 A318 » %25 ALK R B
BRBINFARREGIMEEES R EMEL
HEEREEFIEAEAR22,500,0007T
(20114 + AR#12,801,0007T)% » AQF]
PZ E B A R A 2R FE L A IRER B
B s AR % 14,551,000 (20114 + AR
40,801,0007T) °

The amount as at 31 December 2012 represented the deferred
tax provision of RMB14,551,000 (2011: RMB40,801,000) on the
distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC after
offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of RMB22,500,000 (2011:
RMB12,801,000) arising from dividends declared by these subsidiaries
to their foreign investors during the year.
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25.

26.

% FE TR I8 (1) 25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
20125 20114
2012 2011
AR%TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
K12 A31 B4R & BRI R A Gross deferred tax assets recognised in
BERNRE A E R the consolidated statement of financial position
at31 December 3,575 2,112
A2 A31 B4R & BRI R N Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in
ERHRELETIA R ERR the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 December (64,635) (72,673)
(61,060) (70,561)

REF B ESRUE - ERBIAHA A
INVE R EMINEIEE E SRR B BN
10% M TEIRFTIS TR o 2R E B20084F 1 A1
B4R - AR E2007F12A31 AiLE
BHEF - P BN EZINRIRE & BT
AEER AR TFIELY - RIRBRER =X
BUMTBIRFTSH - MAKEME - BAMTE
RSB E A% - At SR HE
A HE AR S B BB A R FE20084F 1 B 1 H AR AT
BAEAMNMIROREME - NEBAMNE
RFTISHL -

MH2012F12A31H © BRAREIEH %
EMBEBARMKRERE - BZEHMNA]
BRI AT R A - RSB Y &
BRZEMBRARDIKENEREZA
R #2,303,729,000 7 (20114 : AR
905,534,0007T ) FIEIE T I8 & & (HR 79K
ZERBRBMNFZNN) ARK115,186,000
70(20114F « AR®45,276,0007T) °

EIEN s IE A S B ERR BT B - 1ERHE
TERA B B BN T YY) 22 60 BT O R
PrUCER B BI A B BB X TR R R AR R A
RENERBEABRARER o

26.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The applicable rate
for the Group is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of their earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax liabilities of RMB115,186,000 (2011: RMB45,276,000) in
respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB2,303,729,000 (2011:
RMB905,534,000), that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represented government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for its construction of new factory
premises in Changchun and Daging. The grants received are
released to profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the
relevant properties by equal annual installments.
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27. BRA 27. SHARE CAPITAL
0125 MMF
43 Shares 2012 201
EE Authorised:
20,000,000,000(20114F : 20,000,000,000)F%  20,000,000,000 (2011: 20,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0003% t 1,000,000,0007% 7T
SFREBESE TR EBR HK$0.05 each HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ERTRSRE Issued and fully paid:
3,033,602,350(20114F : 3,005,906,950) % 3,033,602,350 (2011: 3,005,906,950) ordinary shares of 151,680,187 ¢ 150,295,34875 7T,
SREBESE TR EER HK$0.05 each HK$151,680,118 HK$150,295,348
ZER Equivalent to AE#132660000t A R131,537,000T
RMB132,660,000 RMB131,537,000
FRRNABEEITRAZESNOT - The following changes in the Company’s issued share capital
took place during the year:
SREE
0.057 T Y
EEREE
Number of EEREE
ordinary shares of Nominal value of
HK$0.05 each ordinary shares
FAT ARETT
HK$'000 RMB'000
ERTREBE . Issued and fully paid:
P2011F128318 & As at 31 December 2011 and
20121718 1 January 2012 3,005,906,950 150,295 131,537
BT BE A (BT 3E) Upon exercise of the share options (note) 27,695,400 1,385 1,123
720126123318 As at 31 December 2012 3,033,602,350 151,680 132,660
et - Note:
BBIRITEESRRN1.828 TITERAARIE T Pursuant to the exercise of the share options at the exercise price of HK$1.82
MR - NARIRGF A IEITE ££27,695,400/% (2011 each granted by the Company, the Company issued a total of 27,695,400
F 1 5,906,950% ) T A E1EO.05 B LAY L MAY - 42 ordinary shares (2011: 5,906,950 ordinary shares) of HK$0.05 each for a total
84 AR(B (REHB ) 4950,406,00078 7T (2011 4F - cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$50,406,000 (2011:
10,751,000/ 71 ) (4% 34 A R #40,872,0007 (2011 HK$10,751,000) (approximately RMB40,872,000 (2011: RMBS,716,000)
F: AR¥8,716,0007T)) ° ZERFREITIRHTE equivalent) during the year. The shares issued during the year rank pari passu
EHEERANRZERRTFRNZE RS - in all respects with the then existing shares of the Company.
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28. f##& 28.

(A)

A%EE
AREREERBETEORELE
RESHERGAMEEDENE
5 o

RBERRPING ERENRRER
NER - REBERBEKIZOMEA
AMNEBEMNEERERER RN
fHREE -

RESERVES

(A) GROUP
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's subsidiaries which are established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
as to use.

(B) COMPANY

B KE
BhE E1]
RDEE f##  Exchange  REEF
Share Share fluctuation Retained @t
premium option reserve reserve profits Total

i ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRL
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RANEIA1R At 1 January 2011 1,673,604 35,891 (59,488) 347,258 1,997,265
FANEEWZEEEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (97,744) 324,01 226,521
ETRD Issue of shares 13645 (5,169) - - 8,476
BINETER Additional listing expenses (3,259) - - - (3,259)
DA B Equity-settled share option
BRER arrangements - 41,682 - - 41,682
WAM%ESR ADIKE  Dividends recognised as
RE distributions to owners 10 - - - (303,026) (303,026)
P01F12A318 % At31 December 2011 and
01251718 1 January 2012 1,683,990 72,404 (157,232) 368,503 1,967,665
FRN2EWEEEE  Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 256 302,123 302,319
Bt Issue of shares 64,251 (24,569) - - 39,682
PARRERE B Equity-settled share option
BRER arrangements - 20,252 - - 20252
WAM%ESR ADIKE  Dividends recognised as
RE distributions to owners 10 - - - (293,834) (293,834)
R0126128318  At31 December 2012 1,748,201 68,087 (156,976) W12 203614
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28. ﬁ%{%(%) 28. RESERVES (Continued)

(B) AT (H)

BRERERRESETERTENS
PR RO A B (BN B 1 R P Rk 2.4
AR BEER N R SN SRR
Fratit) - B RS B AE R RS A
BT ERBRERNEERINIER
BRER MO B R SR
e

29. IERRHERTE

R2010F5 A 148 (THRMEH ) - AARIH
HAEENRINCEEL BERNAARSH
NIRUL BB I SR B R A — IE BB AR A AT &
(TEBRETE D E—Ee X ARESHER
R EI([ B RS EAREE]) -

fBRAERE

BRETENEERSBATEERALD
B (a) AEEEAIKE AR EATHITE
=R REETR B BESEU
BUNEMER(TTRAER]D - EM2EBK
FRES - HEHREAEREFAKELRF
ERTFIFBTENEE : (D)AREE
MRERRNESHIREESR(BEBIF
WITESE) + (OAEBEEMKBRRINER
SKEZEBRR  (AAKEIAKEARINE
AR HIER  (e) A EREEAIKE AT
MEP - BRH - ZERAEBH - e
AR RIERKEK - (HRAAREEH
PKE R RHRERET ~ AT - P EM IR
FAE(AAR - B EEHEMRBOAL
HEE - M(g) bit(a)E () BATREMAL
HIBEEE A -

(B) COMPANY (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 14 May 2010 (the “Adoption Date"”), the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") and a pre-
initial public offering share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme ("Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory
or similar position in any member of the Group (“Executive”),
any full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the time
being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member
of the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of
the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the
Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above.
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29.

B IR &l )

PR8I ()

BRES S BN B IR B EES A
10F - RERHNBRETHESSIE
RoEkEzB(TIRERE]) 280 5
HAHBERAERALTER  BEBRET
B ARHEmR - AT ERARHNER
1# - EARANIERAERATHARRER
2EEEE R (BHREAHRETZN28R)
2 IR — M D AR A AR ERK
BEANVRZ2BBRIENIEZ KRR SN AR R
MEFIATHERRELRER - RIBRER
BRACREREEERALEAREE
o DIEREERER T TNERE -

R2012F12 A318 » AR ERIEER
TERTEIIR B BEARAE(20114F « £&) -

BRARBERNEREE
BRARBEENBERETIEELTREER
AREFAEAEROEE  BBRERR
RASEBIHERERR MRCE - &/ iEE
BERBENTER - ARA R EZEHAR
EEMEE ERIMNEWEER FHE
RIBENRAEEERE - BRIKNNES -
FEZEFEEEFRERE - ERAHEE
BB AT 810 = 2 IR LR AR o+ B0 15
HARBAER - HETHIHERSN

() BRAFAZEEFBERESETH
BERREEREHEE 268 T E
30% ¢ K&

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the
grant of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the
Eligible Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date
of the Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer
Date") provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted
after the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option
Scheme. An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the Eligible Person and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of
the Option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company on or before the
date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted by the
relevant Eligible Person, being a date not later than 28 days after
the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be
refundable.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give
the employees an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and help motivate them to optimise their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward them
for their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such employees who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme
except that:

(i) the subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme shall be at a 30% discount to the offer
price of HK$2.6; and
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29, BERRRESHE a0 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
BXARRERBRESTE(E) PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(i) B\BAXAMBEABREAZETEDR (i) all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
HIFT A BEIRE IR A T AR - will only be vested in the following manner:
AT RN Maximum percentage of
SREHR BEESHL Vesting period options exercisable
BIEMB8E—ERAFEE BRES RS From the 1st anniversary of the 25% of the total number of
REZEHE FhHE 4R EH25% Listing Date until the day immediately ~ the shares under options
E_{HBRAFHMZBL before the 2nd anniversary of

the Listing Date

BrETHEPFE—EARFER  BEBRES RS From the 2nd anniversary of the 35% of the total number of
BEEE FHE 4881 5935% Listing Date until the day immediately ~ the shares under options
FEBAFEmZAL before the 3rd anniversary of

the Listing Date

B FMBEE=ERAFEE BEBRESKERS From the 3rd anniversary of the 40% of the total number of
HBEEE FTHE 488 H)40% Listing Date until the day immediately the shares under options
FNEREFHEATZ B LE before the 4th anniversary of

the Listing Date

FERSEEARR N E T H B E N EASEH = The option period shall be expired on the fourth anniversary of
o the Listing Date.

B AR ER B EE TG ER All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
BB R2010F5 821 BIE T » SHERALHT granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1 paid by each
MREARIET - AREEITEREE A grantee. The total number of shares of the Company which may
RS ERIEIRET SR AT EEREM be issued upon the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-
AIREEATHY AN AR {7 48 8% 115,378,000 IPO Share Option Scheme is 115,378,000.

A% -

BN ER B2 & TEAE A Pre-IPO Share Options do not confer rights on the holders to
BIRRB MR AE FIREAET - dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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29. HEARAESTE () 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
BXARREBRESTS(E) PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
MR2010F5 A21 HIRER & X AFRRER The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted on 21 May
A& HER A F1E(HET49/5128,071,0007 7T - 2010 was estimated at approximately HK$128,071,000, using
I Th 4% 2 e B B Y B AR A O Rk R (&R 1% a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
FRA-IEEAEL o« TRIFHIEXTEAS upon which the options were granted. The following table lists
BAREY the inputs to the model used:
#R Batch 1 2 3
REE(%) Dividend yield (%) 3.169 3.169 3.169
FEERRIE(%) Expected volatility (%) 56.58 56.58 56.58
EREEEX(%) Risk-free rate (%) 0.794 0.956 1.126
BEIER (AETF () Expected option period (Years) 259 3.09 359
FA - BARRBEEATBARERT SR T ER The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO
TR BB AR R DI ZA T Share Option Scheme during the year:
BRITHEE BREHE
Exercise price Number of options
BT T
HKS$ per share ‘000
201281818 At 1 January 2012 1.82 107,224
FRTTE Exercised during the year 1.82 (27,695)
FRRU Forfeited during the year 1.82 (1,641)
20124612 8318 At 31 December 2012 1.82 11,888
FRITEMERERTTE B B IEF A The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
BEAEBRREMH481EIL(20114F « SN share options exercised during the year was HK$4.81 per share
6.52/7T) o (2011: HK$6.52 per share).
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29. EEPRRESHE a) 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

BRDRBEABRETE(E)
2012912 A31H @ WRITENEBREN
TEERITEHESHTIAT

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

BREHE SRiTRE" Gxcile
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
T AT
‘000 HKS per share
8,394 1.82 201146 238 2201456 A 22H
23 June 2011 to 22 June 2014
25,697 1.82 2012676 H23H 2201456 A 2R
23 June 2012 to 22 June 2014
437197 1.82 201356 5230 220146 A 2H
23 June 2013 to 22 June 2014
77,888

* BN ITEEN R BEITAR A RF
AR AR E B AOER T RET T -

AEERAARFEFHE X ARESAE
AERERNE 22012512 A31 B IEEERFER
rIEE RS R S A A R #620,252,0007T (2011
F: AR®41,682,0007T) °

MR2012F12A31H » ARBIBERAFREE
ARG ERT BB T 1 F77,888,2501% (2011
£ :107,223,80010 ) B R A BB E AT
HEAREITE o MIRBAARIRBEAERE
HITEZE S ABTENE R R ERE
ARt - BE AR E #1758 41 77,888,250
f% (20114 : 107,223,800 % ) & @A% - 1k
AR ZEHBE TR A2.57% (2011
F 1 357% ) K E 4 FE S 493,894,000 7
70 (20114 : 5,361,000/8 7T ) KPR A K2 49
137,862,000/ 7T (20114F : 189,786,000
TO) BB m (B R B TR -

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's
share capital.

The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB20,252,000
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB41,682,000) in
relation to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the Company.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 77,888,250 (2011:
107,223,800) Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options would, under the Company's present
capital structure, result in the issue of additional 77,888,250 (2011:
107,223,800) ordinary shares of the Company, representing
2.57% (2011: 3.57%) of the Company's shares in issue as at that
date and additional share capital of approximately HK$3,894,000
(2011: HK$5,361,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$137,862,000 (2011: HK$189,786,000) (before issue
expenses).

120 =E®ZEEZERAERAT China Liansu Group Holdings Limited



BTSRRI 5 )

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

30.

EBE

R201293 8128 ~ 2012493 529H 22012
F11A138 - XEBESRINBEREBEAR
#2,650,0007T + AR®1,750,0007t R AR
#:35,540,000 T W FE S IL T 2 BOBR B IR
ARI(TEBILZE]) - aMEsPIEREaR
AR([HEMEE D MIFmBEAREERA
AI([BFHI)HI100% IHE o B8 1L 2B R B
TRBLE SR E R AL T RER - ShasE
EREEE  HERTEPFIEER - BHE
ENERABERIBESET - wASEYE
% BAEERAERBPAESBREERA
Al e

RUEE RE - PTRBBES LS R - SfER &
BASAENARIEERBEAFENT -

30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 12 March 2012, 29 March 2012 and 13 November 2012,
the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Heshan Liwei
Paint Co., Ltd. (“Heshan Liwei"), Jilin Daco Windows & Doors
Profile Manufacture Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Daco”) and Jiangmen Yong
Bang Furniture Co., Ltd. (“Yong Bang"”) at a cash consideration
of RMB2,650,000, RMB1,750,000 and RMB35,540,000,
respectively. Heshan Liwei has not commenced its business
of the manufacture and sale of building chemicals. Jilin Daco
is principally engaged in the manufacture, sale and installation
of doors and windows. Yong Bang is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of furniture. Yong Bang is renamed as
Guangdong Lesso Cabinet Co., Ltd. subsequent to its acquisition
by the Group.

The respective fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Heshan Liwei, Jilin Daco and Yong Bang acquired at the dates
of acquisition are as follows:

BILYRA EMES BH et

Heshan Liwei Jilin Daco Yong Bang Total

FisE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000

YE BB REE Property, plant and equipment 12 2,650 1,351 54,192 58,193

B LEER Prepaid land lease payments 13 3,267 - 28,132 31,399

FE Inventories - 8,462 - 8,462

Z SRR Trade receivables - 505 - 505

BRFRRE M ERE Prepayments and other receivables 196 3511 - 3,707

Re RFITER Cash and bank deposits 236 82 737 1,055

B HENZE Trade payables - (4,541) - (4,541)

H bR AN ERE A Other payables and accruals (3,699) (7,620) (47,521) (58,840)
AHREEFEESR Total identifiable net assets at fair value

(RRYE) 2,650 1,750 35,540 39,940

AR e Tt Satisfied by cash 2,650 1,750 35,540 39,940

RUEEBER - B 5 EIEIE & E A U RIS
B AT EBRE S B A A REE505,0007T kA
#108,0007T - BAE B ZFIEESS
MG RRERS - NIERE - B2
EBRABHEIMENEHNRESRELTE
j( °

The aggregate fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the dates of acquisition amounted to
RMB505,000 and RMB 108,000, respectively, which approximate
to the gross contractual amounts of those corresponding
balances acquired by the Group. At the dates of acquisition, the
management considered that the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected is insignificant.
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30.

31.

32.

¥ 0t

BERYEHBARMNRSREDTNT

30.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
subsidiaries is as follows:

AR®T

RMB'000

BeNE Cash consideration 39,940
BUEEE S RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents acquired (1,055)
RETHBENES RSB AL R4 Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in investing activities 38,885

BUIELAZRE - ZEWB AR ALEBERAR
Bf AR #19,237,0007T © R B E2012%F
12ANALEFENESRNEREBEARE
1,499,0007T °

Wz & MR EHETT - REBEEE2012F
12331 IEFEMBARAREEEZE2012
F12ANBLEFENENE DA AARKE
10,892,172,000 7T & A R #1,230,388,000
T o

HAREE

MR2012%12 A31H » AEBEE(TE RS
SREE(20114F @ &) -

M2012F12A318 » ARARMFTFHEL
AIMIRTTRLE MERTTEE E AR IR » Bk
PEREERNATIMNNASEAARE
378,539,000 T (20114F : &) - Hf AR
158,944,0007C (20114F © &) EHMB AT
B o RIERR - AR BRI SRR
FEERZERMERETMEEQ0114F | &) -

EERH

AR EEEERROANEBIRITE R L EA
EPAGIEEE WS E e e

31.

32.

Since their acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB19,237,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a loss of
RMB1,499,000 in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year,
the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would have been RMB10,892,172,000 and RMB1,230,388,000
respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2011: Nil).

As at 31 December 2012, the Company issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to
a subsidiary. The aggregate amounts that could be required to
be paid if the guarantees were called upon in entirety amounted
to RMB378,539,000 (2011: Nil), of which RMB158,944,000
(2011: Nil) has been utilised by the subsidiary. As at the end of
the reporting period, no amount (2011: Nil) has been recognised
in the Company’s statement of financial position as liabilities in
respect of such guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank loans and other borrowings which
are secured by the Group's assets are included in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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2012412 A31H
31 December 2012

33. KEMHEZH

(A)

(B)

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
EREHBA (A) ASLESSOR
AEERBECEHETHRHEETA The Group leases certain production plants under operating
ERE HiRTEA—Z2N\FILE- lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to eight years.
RIREER - RIFEBE P ET AT A] At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
BBy - ANEBE D HEKAHR future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
RxEMEEREMT - operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
2012F 20114
2012 2011
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 1,204 641
F_ZERFRN(BIEEREME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 602 -
FF% After five years 2% _
1,832 641
EREBA (B) AS LESSEE
AEERBELCEHERS  HAET The Group leases certain of its production plants,
FERE BEEREE - HEAEEAR warehouses and equipment under operating lease
—ZEnF E - arrangements. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years.
RmEER - REBEAATHELEME At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
4 REBEFHENHARSERS future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
mEEm operating leases falling due as follows:
2012F 20114
2012 2011
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—&FR Within one year 11,208 4,606
F_ZERFAN(BIEEREME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 12121 13,274
HEFR After five years = 6,462
23335 24,342
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31 December 2012

34. EiE 34. COMMITMENTS

MREREEAR - NEB AU TEREE - The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2012 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BRTAVB AR Contracted, but not provided for:
Tt WE - BENEE Land, property, plant and equipment 320,969 417,306
3. BBHALIRS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(A) FEBEFHEBEBALTBEUATEAR (A) THE GROUP HAD THE FOLLOWING MATERIAL
. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING
THE YEAR:

2012F 20114
2012 201
FizE AR®TR ARET T
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

R EER—ZH AR - Companies under the common control of

a director:
L YNEE Provision of utilities (i) 4,948 5,138
BRAAREE Consumption of utilities (i) 5,551 -
el Rental income (ii) 641 854
iz Al ba Rental expenses (ii) 2210 -
HEEME Purchases of materials (iii) 5,053 1,689
b e Purchases of equipment (iv) 55,261 50,849
Ry Emiz Licensing trademarks (v) 730 583
R TEEER Licensing patents (v) 32 40
—(rBREHE A RIREA)  Agency services from companies

RIZPRTS under the control of a director (vi) 4,265 2,314
RESZNHESHS Rental expenses paid to directors (vii) 3231 3410
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2012412 A31H

31 December 2012

35. EBALTRZ @)

(A)

AEBFRNEBABALTEUTEARR
Z ()

fiE -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

NAREZRREHRTRB AR, H
Higftt

T8 a8/ B T IR B 0
s -
RTS8 75 150 0 R 4 B 2
AR -

REDELERBRABAEE=IF
PR B R G R MR A FE

e
5 o

BT RBARNBERERENTIR
TREETT R SE R FETT -

RIZBRTE Ty RE A AR BT 1 e

WRsRERA

MEBERRE RE FHEAE
B - TIIRBE T BEGHE TAKE -

LA B IR A LR 5 TMBR LT AR RIS
TUABMRENBEI HRITRMER S -

(B)

HEBA L NEESE
AREFETHBEAR AHEMEE
KERERERITVHEERE -
R #9,862,0007C (20114 « AR
23,142,0007T ) B 48 & 1 & & H R
BZENTF  BERPBHREN T
33(B)F

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) THE

GROUP HAD THE FOLLOWING MATERIAL

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING
THE YEAR: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Utilities were provided to/by related companies at cost.

Rental income/expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of materials from related companies were made
based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of equipment from related companies were made
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the
related companies to their third-party customers.

Licensing trademarks and patents to related companies were
conducted based on mutually agreed terms.

Agency services were provided by related companies based on
mutually agreed terms.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops and
warehouses were leased to the Group based on mutually agreed
terms.

The related party transactions in respect of the above items
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listed Rules.

(B) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into

lease agreements with directors to lease properties
for operations. The operating lease commitments of
RMB9,862,000 (2011: RMB23,142,000) with lease terms
of three to nine years have been included in note 33(B) to

the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2012

35. BEBALTRZE @m)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(C) AEBEFEEBAEFM(BRES (C) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’'S KEY
< (HEE8)) MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION (NOTE 8))
2012F 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
KHEBSEH Short-term employee benefits 6,105 6,025
RIREEF Post-employment benefits 232 208
ARG HE 4 B R BE AR AE F Equity-settled share option expense 4,039 7,840
10,376 14,073

36. TRITARAYE

RIREHR SRR TANKEERT

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR

VALUE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

20126 20114
2012 2011
FifE AR®TR AREFT
rEH Group Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
RE Investments
BEEHRE Held-to-maturity investments 16 288,690 -
At ERE Available-for-sale investments 17 = 156,508
288,690 156,508
ERRERRE Loans and receivables
B oRWFIERER Trade and bills receivables 19 1,009,534 748,358
H{th FEYGRIE Other receivables 2 19,610 4,492
W& MRTTIER Cash and bank deposits 21 1,922,325 2,116,641
2,951,469 2,869,491
3,240,159 3,025,999
cRBE Financial liabilities
REBERATIENERERE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B HRENTIERER Trade and bills payables 2 512,054 191,314
SAEAh R FRE R Financial liabilities included in other payables
[EAERNTREE and accruals 2 233,582 285,963
RITERREMER Bank loans and other borrowings 24 2,224,582 1,744,708
2,970,218 2,221,985
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36. TR T AR AFEw@m

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR
VALUE (Continued)

2012F 20114
2012 2011
FtaE AR%T R ARETTT
AAFE Company Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
CREE Financial assets
BERRERRE Loans and receivables
m—fEHBATER Loans to a subsidiary 14 1,365,118 1,365,073
FENE -~ e MEMEWFIE  Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 37 350
e —FEIPH B A 78 Amounts due from a subsidiary 14 = 184,938
e RRITIFH Cash and bank deposits 21 57,509 16,651
1,425,844 1,567,012
SRBE Financial liability
REBHERATRNERAE Financial liability at amortised cost
BITERREMER Bank loans and other borrowings 24 1,871,816 1,658,304

RNFEGE RN EEREREEHESRT
AWEETISERMEL - EREERBER
NFEAZTEBRR 57 (MIFEEHE
BIE)EARH TZARZEEARK - T
FIITERBRTIRIAMERT AT E

FAEZFMRE  AJHEERERE
EREORFETREEBTSHER
BEXAGBENRE NS EENE
BELAETROATERBEE—E -

B RYFARZE - HEYR
B RERRTER - BZENKE
RERE - stARMENFANESE
A8 EmE AN QT EEERTER
o XEMNEETIANIHAKE -

RITEFRAEMER(TREELR
BINRATETERRAKERER
BERR - FEERRENGIHA N
TREEWFEHAEHRKBESREE
TTRARMATESL -

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
are based on relevant market information about the financial
instruments. The fair values of financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale investments and the Senior Notes are derived
from quoted prices in active market for identical assets or
liabilities, i.e. level 1 fair value hierarchy in accordance with
HKFRS 7.

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, cash and bank deposits, trade and bills
payables and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of bank loans and other borrowings
(excluding the Senior Notes) have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.
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36.

37.

EBMTARAFEE@m)

B BImAM 16 24D B BENHEE
FERE RBERBIN  RBREHR A%
B E AR T B IR RN SR TAN
FRA(EEAE QA FERS -

TRIERERE B ERBEEK

REENTECR T ABERITER AL
fERARRE RERENR - ZFLRTAN
IBARNAREENSEEEES - A%
B EMBESEREEN TRESREE
REE - PIaNE SRR N H it EUGRIR
KB 5 AN OR S B A N BOR

AEEERTAEENTIEZRARANXE
% SNERR - ERERRBERBESRER
H PR AN 52 [ P RCE O 72 55 R A i I AR K
o AREEWEFEREMTETAREMT
EDREIRZ A o NEEY ERA KBTI
EERMTAMEEEZAR EFSCEMAL
FZZERBREEMBRE - Z8dmT

36.

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR
VALUE (Continued)

Except for the held-to-maturity investments and the Senior
Notes disclosed in notes 16 and 24 respectively to the financial
statements, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments recorded at amortised cost in the financial
statements approximated to their fair values as at the end of the
reporting period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans
and other borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
Broad reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.
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31 December 2012

37. eREMEREBERBE @) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

FlZ= @ b INTEREST RATE RISK
FEART ABENAEERRERSRER In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group
K@ MEEHMET AEBEHRAEETR is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed

DFEMEER -

interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

TREARBRENREHAREREENZEF The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
REFNDENAREE - B HMEER possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
BAE s KREBRIANGHAE A IEA LT constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the

SEEE 2 BB -

floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year.

B BRBE AR A

i,/ (Rd) #in,/ (Ed)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

hasis points profit before tax

ARETT

RMB’000
HE012ENANBIEEE Year ended 31 December 2012 50 (2,433)
HEW012FNANBILEFE Year ended 31 December 2012 (50) 2433
HEMMENRANBILEE Year ended 31 December 2011 50 (432)
HENMFNRANBLEFE Year ended 31 December 2011 (50) 432
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37.

S REMEE HEREBEK @

SN LB
REBEN T ZEBEUNRBE RN - AE
DRBANREHETT - REBABHEE
RABERARKEHE - EETRITEHLR
TTERMEMEFABTTRETLFE - A%
3 A LI R B 1T o

TRETRBEMR - A6 EMEHRS
TEMERT - NREBRVADE N AR
REMERESEXRNSEREZH (AR
EREEERERNRFEEH B 28

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's main businesses are located in Mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the
Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain bank balances and bank loans and other borrowings
denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and loans).

BRBLAD

B/ ETER g
H(FER) =,/ (HD)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

HK$/USS rate profit before tax
AREFT
% RMB'000
20124 2012
AR LB TEE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 5 461
WMAREEBTHE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ (5) (461)
HARELETRE If the RMB weakens against the US$ 5 (88,326)
AR R ETAE If the RMB strengthens against the US$ (5) 88,326
20114 2011
HARE ZBTRE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 5 1419
MARBEBTHE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ (5) (1,419)
MARKH ETEE If the RMB weakens against the US$ 5 (82,697)
WARBHETHE If the RMB strengthens against the US$ (5) 82,697
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37. *RIEREERFERBE@®

EERE
NEEEBRENRMEENSEMNE =TT
R5 o IRBAEBENEER - IEHRIREERD
EIRSGNER Z\»ﬁ'ﬁkiﬁﬁfﬁ?,ﬁi
7o Bboh - AEBERHEERERE SRS
MAEBHERRRI TEX -

AEEWHEMERMEE(RERE LRTHE
FREAERFIEB)NEERBRRER S Y
FREBEEY  ARREESENZETA
EERTE(E °

=) SETE R
TR S MAFH

*—\+ gm
o
-H
Eu

N
=2}
2K

RBEEER
BEEERIHBARNRES RS EEY -
WEBTRARBANEEREESES -

UERTRRITRNRRELE - REEREHR
SHRNEREEIMERAT

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and available funding through various sources of
finances to meet the Group’s commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2012
2012
15/ 2 E
Within 1226 R More than st
1year 1to 2 years 2 years Total

ARETE ARETR ARETZ AR%ETR

FEE Group RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000
Z S ENTIEREE Trade and bills payables 512,054 - = 512,054

S AEMENZIER Financial liabilities included in
EETERANCHARE other payables and accruals 233582 = - 233582
IRITER R EMER Bank loans and other borrowings 729,455 151,133 1,848,131 2728719
1,475,091 151,133 1,848,131 3,474,355
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37. crEREEBEREEm®m 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REBESRE(E) LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)
0114
2011
(30 2L L
Within 1226 R More than st
1year 1to2years 2years Total
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
KEE Group RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000
2o ENZERER Trade and bills payables 191314 - - 191314
S AEAENTIE K Financial liabilities included in other
[EsTEANSRAEE payables and accruals 285,963 - - 285,963
BITETREMER Bank loans and other borrowings 205,517 149,774 2,026,371 2,381,662
682,794 149,774 2,026,371 2,858,939
2012
2012
1R 2FE
Within 1226 R More than st
1year 1to2years 2years Total
ARETRE AR®ETR AR®BTn AR%¥TR
RNATF] Company RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000
SRITE R M E B Bank loans and other borrowings 423,833 128,620 1,826,199 2,378,652
BSERELD Financial guarantee contracts 116,071 21,431 21,436 158,944
539,904 150,057 1,847,635 2,531,596
LTI BERENMBEENSRE - JIRER The amount included above for financial guarantee contracts
B FHIEHBRZER - AATIEEZEAR are the maximum amounts the Company could be required to
BEYHBARZRITRENEHEREREE settle under the arrangements for the full guaranteed amounts in
MHEREEE - RERSHROESR - A2 connection with banking facilities granted to a subsidiary if that
AIRBRAAIEDEREZELT AKX amounts are claimed by the counterparties to the guarantees.
I8 o Based on expectation at the end of the reporting period, the

Company considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under such arrangements.
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37. eREMEREBERBEE @) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBESER(E)

AT Company

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

20114
2011
(3 WEL L
Within 1226 More than st
1year 1to 2 years 2 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000

Bank loans and other borrowings 133,328 133,328 2,026,371 2,293,027

BEXEE

AEEEAEENTRZBRRAREASEE
BURBERELENRES - URERFAER
B RS RHER - UREIRERMEER

HESS -

AEERBKERNEB ERHLEARER
TEHAE - BERLRABREARE - A5H
AR FREMNERE - MBSRE@EAR
HEITHIR - FA - BREANBEE - BR
SBIEA EEE)

REBINHE e REEER - %L
KRFEBRIARA o FEHRERITER
NEMETRER S RIRITER - BEARTIEHE
EHAREE o

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and to
maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes bank loans and
other borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.
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37.

38.

39.

TR REREERBERBE @

EXREE (&)

RIREHR - NEEAOREE BB ALY
R RAEREKT - AR ER - A&
BIERE T 2RI B ETRNEHARRR
EREFBRKENEMEROEES - RIFA]
RIRITREES IR RARRET S ME
BFtE(MFR) - UHERASEEA QK
FHBEASHFHER - RIS HRNFER
iSRS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business. The net debt to equity
ratios at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

20125 20114

2012 2011

AR¥TR ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IRITER R EMER Bank loans and other borrowings 2,224,582 1,744,708

W BE RIRITIER Less: Cash and bank deposits (1,922,325) (2,116,641)

FEB/ (FRE) Net debt/(net cash) 302,257 (371,933)

B Total equity 6,027,918 4,987,365

SFEREERL R Net debt to equity ratio 5% $%154 Net cash
HMEHREER 38. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

H2013F 1168 » KEEF L EE W -
LA B R B RIPT B R A Bl (AN E BT
EERGRIERREERELEREREH
BWER)MI00% KR  ReEREA
AR®116,000,0007T © EREZEREPIBR

BEENEMMIEMBEREESRER - %
R HH2013F 1 A5ERK o

#EM R R

ZEFEN2013F3A 18 B L R IREZ ST
TEHRFIEm -

39.

On 15 January 2013, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to acquire a 100% equity interest in Guangdong
Liansu Valve Co., Ltd., an entity indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wong Luen Hei, an executive director and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group, at a cash consideration of
RMB116,000,000. Guangdong Liansu Valve Co., Ltd. is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of valve products. This
transaction has been completed in January 2013.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 18 March 2013.
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GLOSSARY

==
“Board”

[RBREREHS
“BVI”

[{RRAEH
“CIT”

[=FAll]
"Code"
(A2 F] sk oh BB |

"Company” or “China Liansu”

[ B AT A AR
"EBITDA"

[REE ]
"Group”

FETELEA

"Guangdong Liansu Electric”

[ R 2E e |

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[ ERB B R

"Guangdong Liansu Technology”

[&%]
“Hong Kong”/"HK"

[#T]
"HK$"

[ EmRA

“Listing Rules”

RAREEE

the Board of Directors of the Company

EEERRES
the British Virgin Islands

EEMEH

corporate income tax

EEATRTA(EHE201263A310) R EE AT (H2012F4 818 )
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (up to 31 March 2012) and
the Corporate Governance Code (as from 1 April 2012)

H BB R B AR AR A R
China Liansu Group Holdings Limited

B PSR - ITE REIHRTAE

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

Z/NSIVE YN

the Company and its subsidiaries

BREHERERAR  EMELEFREZERANRG  WAKRAINH
EALT(EER MR

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd., a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules

BREEREBEGERR AR BEELEREZEREENRR]  URARAT
WREA T (ERR EmARAD

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd., a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules

EREZEREEEERAT - RAARNEZEZENB AT
Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

PEEBFRITTRR
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

BB OEEERE AT

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

W2 prg 27 Em AR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

[E<ray ]
“Model Code”

[FTELE]

“New Fortune”

[PE]
"pE"

[PP-RJ
“PP-R"

[ E ]
"PRC"

(B ER

“Prospectus”

[PvC]
“PVC”

[AR®]
"RMB”

[ A% 3R
“Shareholder(s)"”

REPES S

“Senior Notes”

[ 5827 R ARG
"SFO"

[NEfER R B X |

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

[ B8 |

"“State Council”

[ HE 22 PR
"Stock Exchange”

=0
s

EH
“US$”

LFHRRERETESR HHFLESTAI

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

New Fortune Star Limited
New Fortune Star Limited

BWE
polyethylene

FERHABRRRG
polypropylene random

hEARKME
the People’'s Republic of China

KRARIBHIA201066 AOH MR ER
the Company'’s prospectus dated 9 June 2010

BRLE
polyvinyl chloride

R EEEE - AR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

NS GUESEEPN
holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company

KA REITH20165F 2 B3B3 T 7.876% B L R
US$300 million 7.875% senior notes due 2016 issued by the Company

BBEDIES71 EEF LB D
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong

BILTIEEREBEEGRAT
Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.

slerleapi i
The State Council of the PRC

HBMERGFIERAT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EF A RE
the United States of America

XEZEEER, —FT

US dollar, the lawful currency of US
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Mr. Gao Lixin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Gao Lixin
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PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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3,033,602,350/%

M20125E12 831 B 1A :
161.081E/87T

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel
Mr. Yuan Shuixian

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town
Shunde District
Foshan City
Guangdong Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

No. 75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 2128

SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Share issued as at 31 December 2012:
3,033,602,350 shares

Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2012:
HK$16,108 million
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201356 A7E11B (BIEEERKX)

2013 FREBFRE :
2013558318

IR 201 2 REARR B
201346 8208k #H:T H T

KRB FETER
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

RIDVBEBEIE
BERERREBSELBRAA
BBk

B 2faRKER 1835

A FIH L
1711712-1716 =

* B IRRMA201345 A31 B E1TH20134F A
FREG LHEE - FAEE -

DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2012:
HK12 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
18 March 2013

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
— for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual general
meeting: 28 to 31 May 2013 (both dates inclusive)

— for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend:
7 to 11 June 2013 (both dates inclusive)

2013 annual general meeting:
31 May 2013

Payment of 2012 proposed final dividend+:
on or around 20 June 2013

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2013 annual general meeting to
be held on 31 May 2013.

139

R Annual Report 2012



NAER @)

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

REERERREBBAERER

BiESERREIEEHERE
BB EEE6-89

% H0,20182009-2018F
Tt 852-3150 6788

{EH& : 852-3150 6728

E#H : liansu@pordahavas.com
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BB LOELRITARAR

Aut

http://www.liansu.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND MEDIA
RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Porda Havas International Finance Communications Group

Units 2009-2018, 20th Floor, Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: 852-3150 6788

Fax: 862-3150 6728

Email: liansu@pordahavas.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.liansu.com
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Forward-looking statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements related to revenues and earnings.
The words “believe”, “intend”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”,
“predict”, “is confident”, “has confidence” and similar expressions are also intended
to represent forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not
historical facts. Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current
beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and
management of China Liansu about the business, industry and markets in which China
Liansu operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect the
views of the directors and management of China Liansu as at the date of this annual
report only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of
this annual report.



BB NEER YA R ER BB 7558 R 021 2483
Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, No. 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

. 852-2712 8405

852-2714 7022

L1 www.liansu.com
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This annual report is printed on Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF) paper.
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